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Key figures

Ratios 

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Return on shareholders’ equity (ROE) (%)1 12.5 14.6 7.8
Cost / income ratio (%) 78.2 72.8 84.7
Equity ratio at balance sheet date (%) 6.3 6.0 6.6
Basel III leverage ratio at balance sheet date (%) 5.0 5.0 5.0

1 Group net profit annualized as a percentage of average equity based on monthly figures, both without minority interests

Share data

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Basic earnings per share (CHF)1 2.29 2.71 1.42
Diluted earnings per share (CHF)1 2.23 2.66 1.35
Equity per share outstanding at balance sheet date (CHF) 35.98 35.62 36.57
Price / book value per share 1.6 1.9 1.7
Price / earnings 2 per share 12.4 12.4 21.7
Share price at balance sheet date (CHF) 56.70 67.10 61.30
High (CHF) 67.80 84.85 68.90
Low (CHF) 52.50 57.55 50.70
Market capitalization nominal capital at balance sheet date (CHF M) 3,224.8 3,816.3 3,486.4
Market capitalization less treasury shares at balance sheet date (CHF M) 3,164.7 3,741.1 3,383.9
Undiluted weighted average number of shares 55,750,049 55,765,783 55,443,862

1 Basis: weighted average number of shares
2 Annualized

Share information

Stock exchange listing
SIX Swiss 
Exchange

ISIN CH001 233 554 0
Security number 1 233 554
Par value CHF 1.00
Bloomberg VONN SW
Reuters VONTZn.S
Telekurs VONN

BIS capital ratios

30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
CET1 capital ratio (%) 17.3 18.5 16.7
CET1 capital (CHF M) 1,155.5 1,186.5 1,052.7
Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 24.0 25.5 23.8
Tier 1 capital (CHF M) 1,605.3 1,635.9 1,502.3
Risk-weighted positions (CHF M) 6,691.1 6,414.5 6,304.1

Risk ratio

CHF M H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Average Value at Risk market risk 9.1 6.7 8.3

Average Value at Risk 6 months for positions of Vontobel. Historical simulation of Value at Risk; 99 % confidence level; 1-day holding period; 
4-year historical observation period
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Key figures

Rating

30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
Moody’s Rating Bank Vontobel AG (long-term deposit rating) Aa3 Aa3 Aa3

Operating income by Client Unit / Center of Excellence

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
CHANGE IN % 

TO
CHF M CHF M CHF M H1 2022

Asset Management 203.0 247.1 209.5 −18
Wealth Management 394.0 320.2 325.6 23
Digital Investing 86.8 120.9 64.7 −28
Centers of Excellence / Reconciliation 12.4 −2.1 −0.9 690

Consolidated income statement 

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
CHANGE IN % 

TO
CHF M CHF M CHF M H1 2022

Operating income 696.1 686.1 599.0 1
Operating expense 545.8 505.7 512.0 8
Profit before taxes 150.3 180.4 87.0 −17
Group net profit 127.6 151.4 78.5 −16
of which allocated to the shareholders of Vontobel Holding AG 127.6 151.4 78.5 −16

Consolidated balance sheet 

30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
CHANGE IN % 

TO
CHF M CHF M CHF M 31.12.2022

Total assets 32,061.7 32,943.0 30,509.2 5
Shareholders’ equity (excl. minority interests) 2,008.0 1,986.1 2,018.6 −1
Loans 7,139.8 7,115.8 7,462.3 −4
Customer deposits 11,453.7 15,207.3 13,240.9 −13

 

Client assets

30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
CHANGE IN % 

TO
CHF B CHF B CHF B 31.12.2022

Assets under management 211.9 208.6 204.4 4
of which under discretionary management 127.8 133.4 124.6 3
of which under non-discretionary management 84.1 75.2 79.8 5
Other advised client assets 18.9 13.5 14.5 30
Structured products and debt instruments outstanding 10.0 6.9 7.7 29
Total advised client assets 240.7 229.0 226.6 6
Custody assets 32.0 27.0 27.9 15
Total client assets 272.7 256.0 254.6 7

Net new money

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
CHF B CHF B CHF B

Net new money −0.9 −1.0 −4.2

Personnel (full-time equivalents)

CHANGE IN % 
TO

30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Number of employees Switzerland 1,810.7 1,738.3 1,801.1 1
Number of employees abroad 409.9 421.5 413.3 −1
Total number of employees 2,220.6 2,159.8 2,214.4 0
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COMMENTS ON THE FIGURES
The amounts shown in the numerical part of the report are rounded. The figures presented may therefore not add up precisely 
to the totals provided in the tables and text. Percentages and percent changes are calculated based on rounded figures dis-
played in the tables and text and may not precisely reflect the percentages and percent changes that would be derived from 
figures that are not rounded. A blank field indicates that the corresponding position does not contain a value. 0.0 means that 
the corresponding position contains a value that amounts to 0.0 when rounded.

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (APM)
We measure performance using alternative financial indicators that are not defined in the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). Details can be found in the glossary on pages 51 and 52.

This report also appears in German. The German version is prevailing.



“�At Vontobel, we are steering a steady course through this 
challenging environment. We know our strengths and we 
are also acting with tenacity, since we believe the changes 
we are seeing are both permanent and profound. In the 
business with private clients, we are further strengthening 
our focus on mature and developed markets. We have 
streamlined our business portfolio and are on track to 
reduce our cost base. We are continuing to consistently 
execute our strategy and are seizing opportunities.  
By the end of 2023, we will have hired more than 50 new 
advisors in Wealth Management, some of whom are 
already working for Vontobel.”

Dr. Zeno Staub
Chief Executive Officer

Andreas E. F. Utermann
Chairman of the Board of Directors 



Dear shareholders and clients,

After two extraordinary years – with a record period for 
stock markets in 2021 followed by a difficult year in 2022 
– Vontobel delivered a robust performance in the first half 
of 2023. Our financial result reflects the continued uncer-
tainty triggered by macroeconomic developments as well 
as political crises.

Rising interest rates, high inflation and fear of recession, 
as well as the war in Ukraine and tensions between differ-
ent political blocs – not to mention individual events in the 
US and the Swiss financial sectors – fueled uncertainty 
among investors. As a result, institutional investors 
remained on the sidelines, while private investors sought 
a professional partner to advise them on how to manage 
their wealth.

Reflecting this trend, the Wealth Management business 
achieved a very positive performance in our Swiss home 
market as well as our focus markets in the first six months 
of 2023. As a general rule, private investors looked for 
security and the corresponding diversification opportuni-
ties during this period. Adjusted for outflows due to our 
market focus, growth in net new money in Wealth Man-
agement was 8.4 percent on an annualized basis, exceed-
ing our own target range of 4–6 percent. Excluding these 
effects, Wealth Management recorded CHF 2.1 billion of 
net new money (1H 2022: CHF 3.0 billion). In contrast, the 
business with asset management clients recorded nega-
tive net new money of CHF 3.0 billion or growth of −5.6 
percent. In line with the previous year, strong demand 
from wealth management clients was unable to compen-
sate for the cautious behavior of asset management cli-
ents. Overall, growth in net new money was −0.9 percent, 
compared to −0.8 percent in the first half of 2022. Adjusted 
growth in net new money was +0.9 percent on an annual-
ized basis.

Following the exceptionally large market losses of 2022, 
valuations recovered in the first half of the current year. 
This is also reflected by client assets under management 
of CHF 211.9 billion, up by 4 percent compared to the fig-
ure at the end of 2022 (CHF 204.4 billion). In the business 
with our wealth management clients, assets under man-
agement rose by 6 percent to CHF 98.1 billion due primar-
ily to the very strong inflow of net new money; this com-
pared to assets under management of CHF 92.6 billion at 
the end of 2022. 

Driven by improved performance, which more than offset 
asset outflows, Asset Management recorded a 1 percent 
increase in assets under management to CHF 108.7 bil-
lion in the period under review compared to the end of 
2022 (CHF 107.2 billion). 

Our clients’ assets are actively managed by more than 
300 investment experts in Switzerland, the US, the UK, 
Hong Kong, Italy and Germany. True to Vontobel’s long-
term focus as an active investment manager, also in chal-
lenging environments they aren’t influenced by the latest 
trends – they follow their convictions in order to achieve 
long-term success for our clients. This is also demon-
strated by the ratings assigned by international rating 
agencies: 59 percent of all Vontobel funds rated by Morn-
ingstar (weighted according to assets under manage-
ment) achieved a 4- or 5-star rating. Multi asset solutions 
proved especially popular in the first six months of this 
year, and investments in fixed income products became 
more attractive again due to rising interest rates.

Strong profitable growth in Wealth Management
Despite the worldwide pressure on margins, Vontobel 
was able to increase its gross margin in the business with 
wealth management clients to 82 basis points compared 
to 70 basis points in the first half of 2022. In the business 
with asset management clients, the gross margin was 
almost flat at 37 basis points, compared to 38 basis 
points in the first half of 2022.

Overall, Vontobel delivered a robust pre-tax profit of CHF 
150.3 million in the first half of 2023. This result was 
below the pre-tax profit of CHF 180.4 million in the first 
half of 2022, which reflected the very strong start to the 
year before the outbreak of the war in Ukraine. Group net 
profit reached CHF 127.6 million, compared to CHF 151.4 
in the first half of 2022.

All Client Units contributed once again to the good result 
for the first half of 2023. The globally strong business 
with wealth management clients showed continued pos-
itive developments, with operating income growing to 
CHF 394.0 million from CHF 320.2 million in the first half 
of 2022. This increase partly reflects the positive effects 
of higher interest rates. The Asset Management business 
contributed CHF 203.0 million of operating income to 
Group net profit, compared to CHF 247.1 million in the 
first half of 2022. Digital Investing – the business with cli-
ents who primarily use our digital channels – contribute 

Shareholders’ letter 

Shareholders’ letter4



Shareholders’ letter 5

CHF 86.8 million of operating income to Group net profit, 
compared to CHF 120.9 million in the prior-year period. 
The demand for structured investment solutions normal-
ized in recent months and has returned to the level seen 
in 2020. Vontobel’s total operating income was CHF 
696.1 million in the first half of 2023, compared to CHF 
686.1 million in the prior-year period. 

Rigorous execution of Lighthouse Ambition 2030 while 
seizing long-term opportunities for growth 
The cost / income ratio increased to 78.2 percent at the 
end of June 2023 from 72.8 percent in the first half of 2022. 
In the medium term, Vontobel is targeting a cost /income 
ratio of less than 72 percent. The cost / income ratio for the 
first half of 2023 includes costs-to-achieve of several mil-
lion Swiss francs resulting from efforts to sharpen the 
focus of the business portfolio. In 2022, Vontobel took 
measures to contain costs in view of deteriorating market 
conditions and set itself the goal of further aligning its 
business portfolio more closely with the Lighthouse Ambi-
tion to achieve gross cost reductions of CHF 65 million by 
the end of 2023. Strict efforts are underway to reduce the 
cost base. At the same time, we will continue to follow the 
principle of seizing long-term opportunities for growth 
that entail potential one-off costs. These growth opportu-
nities will contribute to the realization of our strategic pri-
orities and consequently to the Lighthouse Ambition 2030. 
Vontobel is pursuing a strategy that involves thinking in 
generations, not in quarters.

Vontobel’s four priorities for 2023 / 2024 as it works 
towards its Lighthouse Ambition 2030:

1.	 Delivering future-proof investment solutions
2.	 Delivering best-in-class private client experiences
3.	 Accelerating our US growth
4.	 Scaling value creation

 
In the first half of 2023, Vontobel’s attractive business 
model and strong brand created opportunities to signifi-
cantly expand client-facing areas in Wealth Management 
in order to drive future growth (priority 2). Vontobel plans 
to hire more than 50 new client advisors in the course of 
2023. In the first half of 2023, Vontobel was able to hire 
numerous wealth management experts from a large num-
ber of interested professionals, some of whom are now 
already working for Vontobel or will join the investment 
firm in the course of the year. Vontobel is holding further 
talks with wealth management experts who could serve 
clients in our Swiss home market and in selected focus 

markets in the future or will join the investment firm in the 
course of the year. At the end of 2022, a total of around 
315 advisors served Vontobel‘s wealth management cli-
ents. The growth is already partly reflected by the cost /
income ratio as of June 30, 2023.

The legal merger of the two Switzerland-based Vontobel 
entities serving US clients closed successfully in April 
2023 (priority 3), marking another important step in the 
delivery of our growth strategy in North America. Vontobel 
is today the largest Swiss-domiciled wealth manager for 
North American clients who are seeking international 
diversification for their assets and want them to be 
booked in Switzerland. 

To deliver a best-in-class client experience, Vontobel has 
further evolved derinet – its successful platform for struc-
tured products. In the first half of 2023, Vontobel Markets 
was launched in France and the Nordic markets (priorities 
2 and 4). In the coming months, clients in Switzerland and 
other European markets should also be able to benefit 
from the new opportunities offered by Vontobel Markets. 
Vontobel wants to offer its clients future-proof investment 
solutions (priority 1). These include the Vontobel Fund – 
Global Environmental Change, which has been assigned a 
five-star rating by Morningstar and thus ranks as one of 
the largest sustainable funds in Europe. Based on its per-
formance as of June 30, 2023, it is at the upper end of the 
first quartile over a five-, three- and one-year horizon 
among this category of funds.

Capital-light business model with conservative risk 
profile proves effective
Vontobel has a capital-light business model with a con-
servative risk profile, as reflected by the return on equity 
of 12.5 percent. In the first half of 2022, the return on 
equity was 14.6 percent. The return on equity for the first 
half of 2023 was therefore slightly below Vontobel’s ambi-
tious target of at least 14 percent. 

At the same time, the CET 1 capital ratio was strong at 
17.3 percent as of June 30, 2023, up from 16.7 percent at 
the end of 2022. The Tier 1 capital ratio was 24.0 percent 
as of June 30, 2023, and thus increased compared to the 
end of 2022 (23.8 percent). Vontobel has set itself the tar-
get of achieving a CET1 capital ratio of more than 12 per-
cent and a total capital ratio of more than 16 percent.

Vontobel’s performance in the first half of 2023 confirms 
that we are moving in the right direction. Even if it was not 
possible to replicate the record results achieved in 2021, 
we are today in a stronger position than we were two 
years ago. Vontobel has, for example, generated signifi-
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cant growth in Wealth Management and we have sub-
stantially expanded our product range in the structured 
products business and increased our level of market 
acceptance. Like the entire active asset management 
industry, our Asset Management business is experiencing 
a difficult phase. However, we will successfully master the 
challenges in this business thanks to our clear positioning 
and long-term focus.

Vontobel is committed to its strategic priorities and its 
Lighthouse Ambition. In the search for a successor for Dr. 
Zeno Staub, who intends to step down as CEO in April 
2024 after more than 20 years at Vontobel, the Board of 
Directors is looking for candidates who represent a good 
fit for Vontobel in terms of our strategy, Lighthouse Ambi-
tion 2030 and culture. The Board of Directors is proceeding 
with great care and attention and taking the time needed 
for this process. This is possible thanks to the fact that the 
Board was informed well in advance about the forthcoming 
leadership change in the Executive Committee. 

Vontobel has an excellent management team and a deep 
pool of talent that we can draw on when appointing suc-
cessors to key positions, as is the case with our new Chief 
Operating Officer. A powerful and experienced team 
whose members trust one another and act as sparring 
partners is crucial especially in periods of uncertainty. The 
current uncertainty is set to persist, but Vontobel is well 
positioned to navigate this landscape. The war in Ukraine 
is continuing and geopolitical tensions are undiminished. 
Fears of recession still loom large and global inflation has 
not been tamed. This situation is further exacerbated by 
challenges such as demographic developments and cli-
mate change that the world has faced, at least in part, for 
decades. And finally, the developments of the last two 
years have left their mark on the financial sector.

Going forward, Vontobel will continue empowering inves-
tors to build a better future. And irrespective of the cur-
rent environment, we remain confident that we will achieve 
our existing ambitious mid-term targets across the cycle.

We wish to thank you, our shareholders, and our clients 
and employees for the trust that you place in Vontobel. We 
are committed to earning that trust day after day.

Andreas E.F. Utermann	 Dr. Zeno Staub
Chairman of the Board	 Chief Executive Officer
of Directors 
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A client-centric investment firm – clearly 
positioned for clients and investors
The demand for professional investment solutions and 
individually tailored expert investment advice is growing 
constantly across all client groups and sections of the 
population also as a means of addressing the increasing 
pension funding gap around the world. Following a pro-
longed phase of low interest rates, we are now once again 
confronted with the specter of inflation combined with ris-
ing interest rates, elevated uncertainty and heightened 
geopolitical tensions, which were present even before the 
outbreak of war in Ukraine. The investment environment is 
therefore very challenging and highly volatile. Investing is 
the new form of saving. 

At the same time, the wishes and behavior of clients are 
evolving – due in particular to ever faster technological 
advances and the new opportunities they create. Today, 
investors expect individual solutions at any time, in any 
location: They want problems to be solved in a single click. 
Practices that are already part of the everyday client expe-
rience in large areas of the retail industry are now also 
increasingly visible in the financial sector.

At Vontobel, we want to actively seize the growth opportu-
nities resulting from changes in the investment environ-
ment and evolving client behavior at an early stage. Our 
aim is to thus set ourselves apart from the competition – 
leading the way in terms of the quality of our performance 
and client experiences. Our stable shareholder structure 
has always allowed us to think and act long-term. We are 
underscoring our commitment to taking the client’s view 
with our exclusive focus on the buy-side business. This 
means that we are always on the side of the investor. 

We are shaping our future direction based on our four stra-
tegic levers. Client-centric and investment-led are levers 
that are closely connected so that we can offer the best 
investment solutions that are tailored to client needs. 
Vontobel is convinced that client focus and investment 
expertise remain key to the success of our clients and the 
company. We want to anticipate the wishes of our clients 
so that we are always ready to deliver the right solutions. 
We are technology-enabled and intend to make even 
greater use of the power of technology. We could not 
achieve all this without our employees. We are powered by 
people because they make the difference in our industry 
– today and in the future.

A pure-play investment manager based on 
four strategic levers 

Client-centric

Technology-
enabled

Investment-led

Powered by 
people

Our goal is to enable each client to access the very best 
we can offer in terms of investment opportunities and ser-
vices using the very latest technology. We create typical 
Vontobel client experiences that can compete with the 
offerings of leading digital companies. To achieve this, 
Vontobel not only invests in talents and technology but we 
also continuously develop the way we work together. 

Asset Management

Wealth Management

Digital Investing

Investments

Structured Solutions & 
Treasury

Technology & Services

Vo
nt

ob
el

Vontobel
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At Vontobel, our advisory expertise is bundled within the 
specialized Client Units Asset Management, Wealth Man-
agement and Digital Investing since August 1, 2021. Rela-
tionship managers within the Client Units can concentrate 
fully on meeting the wishes and needs of our clients 

Asset Management focuses primarily on institutional cli-
ents such as pension funds, insurance companies and sov-
ereign wealth funds, as well as third-party banks in the 
wholesale fund business. The concept of well-established 
asset-class specialization and the corresponding boutique 
structure of Investments are complemented by a regional 
focus in the area of client services. The provision of ser-
vices to the Global Banks client group is coordinated glob-
ally to optimally address the growth potential in this area.

The Wealth Management team serves wealthy private cli-
ents. In addition, the expertise to serve External Asset 
Managers (EAMs) is integrated into Wealth Management. 
This allows clients with complex international asset struc-
tures to benefit from the advisory services used by institu-
tional clients. The Wealth Management team also advises 
entrepreneurs and decision-makers from the SME seg-
ment on their personal financial needs. Its offering is com-
plemented by technology-driven digital wealth manage-
ment services for private and institutional clients.

Digital Investing is the challenger unit whose competen-
cies can be offered to broader client groups either directly 
or via ecosystems. This unit also focuses on the successful 
end-clients business with structured products. Platforms 
such as derinet/Vontobel Markets, cosmofunding and Volt 
continue to operate in these areas, placing an emphasis on 
client needs.

All of Vontobel’s Client Units have full access to our excel-
lent investment and solutions expertise within our various 
Centers of Excellence. In these Centers, similar compe-
tencies are brought together in a single location to allow 
for the cross-fertilization of ideas in order to develop the 
best possible client solutions in the most effective way. 
Our Centers of Excellence are: Investments, Structured 
Solutions & Treasury, Technology & Services, Communi-
cations & Brand Marketing, Finance & Risk, Human 
Resources and Legal & Compliance.

Strategic importance of investments 

Our proven, distinctive investment capabilities within our 
multi-boutique set-up are at the heart of our business 
model. For more than two decades, this has shown to be 
the ideal way to develop and protect outstanding invest-
ment approaches in a robust and replicable manner.

Client centric and investment-led approach

Client Excellence Investment Excellence 

Asset Management 
clients

Wealth Management 
clients

Digital Investing 
clients

Quality Growth

Vontobel Conviction 
Equities

Fixed Income 

TwentyFour AM

Vontobel Multi Asset

Vescore

Structured Solutions & 
Treasury

Vo
nt
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Vontobel has a very strong and well-diversified range of 
boutiques in which we have made targeted investments in 
recent years. We have around 300 specialists working in 
our investment hubs in Zurich, New York, London and 
other European cities, and increasingly also in Asia. They 
form the basis of our global investment expertise. Vontobel 
is convinced that the multi-boutique model is a promising 
approach and the right way forward. We will therefore con-
tinue to systematically pursue and expand this approach 
across all our investment teams, ensuring a high level of 
continuity. 

Our commitment to active management, combined with 
our strong and stable shareholder structure, enables us to 
invest according to our convictions with a long-term hori-
zon. We create value through our diverse, highly special-
ized teams who develop strategies and solutions in the 
asset classes Equities, Fixed Income and Multi Asset. 
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Our clients have benefited from our broad range of sus-
tainable investment solutions since the 1990s. Vontobel is 
therefore one of the pioneers in this field. We have also 
established ourselves as a leader in Emerging Markets 
(EM) and rank among the largest European EM Managers 
in the areas of Equities and Fixed Income. 

In the area of Structured Solutions & Treasury, we support 
our clients by supplying credit and arranging private place-
ments and loans via cosmofunding, as well as through risk 
management and risk transformation. Our range of struc-
tured products forms part of this offering. 

Leadership team for rapid,  
client-oriented decisions
All our units are connected by a flat management structure 
and integrated in a uniform performance evaluation system 
that is focused on the achievement of shared success for 
our clients. In this way, Vontobel is facilitating cooperation 
across businesses in a collaborative working environment. 
This fosters market-driven innovation, above-average 
organic growth and the development of disruptive busi-
ness models.

Leadership Forums involving all Client Units and Invest-
ment Boutiques are held regularly to support collaboration 
across businesses. 

Global  
Client  
Forum

Investment  
Performance  

Forum

Global  
Executive 

Board

The Global Executive Board is a platform for dialogue 
between our heads of the client units and centers of excel-
lence to facilitate the agile development and management 
of Vontobel. It focuses primarily on the implementation of 
our strategy as well as on financial and operational mat-
ters. In line with our approach, responsibility for our shared 
success is widely shared and we draw on the knowledge 
of various experts. In addition to members of the Executive 
Committee, all Clients Units and Centers of Excellence are 
represented on the Global Executive Board.

The Global Client Forum serves as a kind of marketplace 
where client needs and product solutions meet. This is 
where client feedback is analyzed and used as the basis to 
develop appropriate solutions.

The Investment Performance Forum reviews product per-
formance and defines performance expectations, as well 
as analyzing the robustness and quality of the investment 
process. 

Vontobel’s organic growth is based on our investment-led 
commitment and the fact that we have evolved into a pure-
play wealth and asset manager with investment excellence 
at its core. The Investment Boutiques and the Center of 
Excellence Structured Solutions & Treasury are directly 
represented in the relevant Client and Performance 
Boards. This ensures that Vontobel’s investment focus is 
firmly enshrined within the organization. 
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Global Executive Board (EB)

1	 Member of the Executive Committee of Vontobel Holding AG 
2	 Member of the Executive Committee Bank Vontobel AG

Zeno Staub 1, 2 
CEO

Felix Lenhard 1, 2 
COO,  
Head Technology & Services

Maria-Antonella Bino 1, 2 
General Counsel,  
Head Legal & Compliance

Georg Schubiger 2 
Head Wealth Management

Caroline Knöri 
Head Human Resources

Markus Pfister 2 
Head Structured Solutions & Treasury

Marko Röder 
Head Asset Management

Thomas Heinzl 1, 2 
CFO / CRO,  
Head Finance & Risk

Christel Rendu de Lint 1,2 
Head Investments

June 30, 2023

Vontobel
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Our Lighthouse Ambition 2030

As a long-term oriented investment firm, we have set our 
Lighthouse Ambition 2030: “By 2030, Vontobel will be 
known as one the leading and most trusted global invest-
ment firms.”

By concentrating on this shared long-term goal, we can 
ensure that the entire Vontobel organization is working 
together and moving in the same direction.

The ambition is based on a fully client-oriented business 
model. Our clients and investment processes will be sup-
ported by digital data and analysis. Content, data and arti-
ficial intelligence will be at the heart of what we do. Our 
work will center around investing and the solutions we cre-
ate will be best-in-class for alpha, beta and also income 
products.

Priorities 2023 – 2024

To ensure the requisite degree of agility and flexibility, the 
firm operates towards the clear long-term vision in two-
year sprints with concrete targets and business plans. 

This approach based on focused and agile rolling two-year 
plans, ensure that our short- and medium-term efforts 
firmly align with our long-term Lighthouse Ambition 2030. 

For the Period 2023–2024 the Board of Directors and the 
Executive Committee defined four Strategic priorities as 
outlined below. 

Milestones on our way towards the Vontobel Lighthouse 2030

New regimes 
Review, diversify and enhance 
our offering

Private markets 
Acquire capabilities to tap a 
large and growing segment

Transition to sustainability  
Expand our ESG offering and 
live our principles

Personalization at scale  
Develop mass-customized  
solutions

On-demand service models  
Build a unified hybrid client  
service model

Strict market focus 
Focus efforts on a strict set  
of developed markets

Strong regional hub  
Prudently expand our US  
capabilities and footprint

Strengthen partnerships  
and distribution  
Existing and new partners

Global banks  
Deepen cooperation to  
maximize the distribution  
potential

Capital efficiency 
Strengthen cost management 
and capital allocation processes

Operational excellence  
Continuously improve systems 
and processes

Talent development 
Retain and develop the best  
talent

1.	 Delivering  
	 future proof  
	 investment  
	 solutions

2.	 Delivering  
	 best-in-class  
	 private client  
	 experiences

3.	 Accelerating 
	 our US growth

4.	 Scaling  
	 value creation

Protect our margins and  
grow NNM from existing  
and new asset classes  
and strategies

Acquire new clients and  
grow share of wallet  
and engagement

Acquire new clients seeking 
international diversification  
and expertise

Improve cost, capital and  
process efficiency

Strategic Priorities 2023 – 2024
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Targets

Ambitious mid-term targets

Building on these strategic priorities, the Board of Directors 
and the Executive Committee have extended the ambi-
tious through-the-cycle targets for growth, profitability, 
capital and dividends to 2024. 

In specific terms, this means Vontobel wants to:

	– Outgrow the market in all core activities with top-line 
growth and net new money growth of 4–6 percent p.a. 

	– Generate a higher return on equity of more than 
14 percent, clearly exceeding the cost of capital;  
achieve a cost / income ratio of less than 72 percent  

	– Maintain a very strong capital position with a  
CET1 capital ratio of more than 12 percent and a  
total capital ratio of more than 16 percent 

	– Distribute profits not used for organic growth and 
M&A to shareholders, with a target payout ratio of 
more than 50 percent for shareholders

 

Top-line growth 
Operating income 4 – 6 %

Net new money generation
Net new money growth 4 – 6 %

Earnings power
Return on equity (ROE) >14 %

Efficiency
Cost / income ratio <72 %

Capital strength
BIS CET1 capital ratio >12 %
BIS total capital ratio >16 %

Dividend
Payout ratio >50 %



Business review

Financial markets recover – economy proves robust in 
the short-term despite interest rate hikes and continued 
major geopolitical tensions
After a very challenging year in 2022, financial markets 
began to recover in the first half of 2023, although the 
upswing was interrupted temporarily towards the end of 
the first quarter by stubborn inflation figures and rising 
interest rates, as well as instability in the financial sector 
affecting individual regions and specific institutions. The 
rapid action taken in the banking industry to resolve these 
issues and robust job market data, eased concerns about 
an imminent global recession. 

In equity markets, tech stocks took center stage – driven 
by progress in the area of artificial intelligence. Bond 
prices also increased, while commodities, which experi-
enced a boom in 2022, trended downwards. Measured by 
the MSCI World All Countries Total Return Index, global 
equity markets rose by 15.5 percent in local currencies. In 
comparison, the performance of Swiss indices was more 
modest, with the SMI up by 5.1 percent and the SPI up by 
8.2 percent. In the case of fixed income securities, both 
government bonds (Global Government Bonds +0.9 per-
cent, hedged in Swiss francs) and corporate bonds 
(Bloomberg Global Aggregate Corporate Bonds +0.9 per-
cent, hedged in Swiss francs) rose slightly. During the first 
half of 2023, the Swiss franc strengthened against the US 
dollar and the euro, as well as other currencies (with the 
exception of the British pound).

Maintaining a long-term focus …
While the global operating environment has changed, 
Vontobel is maintaining its long-term focus on the genera-
tion of recurring income and is consciously refraining from 
participating in short-term market trends, in line with its 
conservative risk profile. Current market conditions as well 
as the growing need to invest and the desire for greater 
diversification are creating long-term growth opportuni-
ties that Vontobel is actively seizing. With its realignment 
as a global, client-centric pure-play investment firm in 
2020, Vontobel set itself a clear goal. Our Lighthouse 
Ambition states: “By 2030, Vontobel will be known as one 
of the leading and most trusted global investment firms.” 
Vontobel remains committed to its ambitious growth and 
profit targets for 2023 to 2024. Further information on 
Vontobel’s strategy and mid-term targets is provided on 
page 5 and pages 7 to 12. In the first half of 2023, Vontobel 
continued to invest in new talent with new capabilities, as 
well as in future technologies, in line with its long-term 
focus. It also strengthened its commitment to its focus 
markets. The merger of the former Vontobel Swiss Wealth 
Advisors AG (VSWA) with Vontobel SFA (formerly UBS 
Swiss Financial Advisers AG) was completed in the first 

half of 2023, signaling the closing of the legal and opera-
tional merger of the two entities to create Vontobel SFA. 
As a result, Vontobel is today the largest Swiss-domiciled 
wealth manager for North American clients who are seek-
ing international diversification for their assets and want 
them to be booked in Switzerland. The structured prod-
ucts platform Vontobel Markets (previously known as der-
inet) represents another success story: It was recently 
rolled out in France and the Nordic markets. In the coming 
months, clients in Switzerland and other European mar-
kets should also be able to benefit from the new opportu-
nities offered by Vontobel Markets. 

… and delivering a robust result in a challenging market 
environment 
Interest rate hikes and good development of client assets, 
especially in Wealth Management, had a positive impact 
on the development of income compared to the first half of 
2022. Operating income reached CHF 696.1 million in the 
first half of 2023, compared to CHF 686.1 million in the 
prior-year period (+1 percent). In light of the market envi-
ronment and the growth opportunities taken, Vontobel 
delivered a robust Group net profit of CHF 127.6 million, 
down 16 percent compared to CHF 151.4 million in the 
first half of 2022. Pre-tax income declined by 17 percent to 
CHF 150.3 million. All three Client Units made a positive 
contribution to the result. At constant exchange rates, pre-
tax profit decreased by 11 percent. Adjusted for cost-to-
achieve, pre-tax profit reached CHF 158.8 million (−12 per-
cent). 

As an investment firm with a long-term focus, Vontobel is 
systematically executing its mid-term strategy. It is also 
managing its costs with a long-term view to maintain its 
strategic flexibility. In the first half of 2023, Vontobel con-
tinued to invest in strategic projects and seized growth 
opportunities. We nevertheless remain committed to 
implementing a sharper focus and leaner positioning, and 
we will generate additional gross cost reductions of CHF 
65 million by the end of 2023. We expect cost-to-achieve 
to reach about CHF 15 million in the course of 2023, of 
which CHF 8.5 million were already incurred in the first half 
of the year. In the short-term, the cost base grew by 8 per-
cent year on year to CHF 545.8 million due to the growth 
opportunities taken during the period under review. The 
cost/income ratio increased to 78.2 percent from 72.8 
percent in the first half of 2022. In the medium term, 
Vontobel is targeting a cost/income ratio of less than 72 
percent. In a challenging market environment in the first 
half of 2023, Vontobel generated a return on equity of 12.5 
percent, below our mid-term target of 14 percent. The 
return on tangible equity reached 17.8 percent (1H 2022: 
19.7 percent). 
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Our robust capital position reflects the stability and finan-
cial solidity of our investment firm. The CET1 ratio reached 
17.3 percent (end-2022: 16.7 percent) and the Tier 1 capi-
tal ratio, which is identical to the total capital ratio at 
Vontobel, of 24.0 percent also increased compared to the 
end of 2022 (23.8 percent). The capital ratios continue to 
substantially exceed the regulatory minimum require-

ments that apply to Vontobel, including the countercyclical 
buffer defined by FINMA of 8.0 percent for the CET1 cap-
ital ratio, 9.8 percent for the Tier 1 capital ratio and 12.2 
percent for the total capital ratio. Our internal targets are a 
CET1 capital ratio of at least 12 percent and a total capital 
ratio of at least 16 percent.

Client assets by client domicile as of June 30, 2023

CHF B
ASSETS UNDER 
MANAGEMENT

OTHER 
ADVISED 

CLIENT ASSETS

STRUCTURED 
PRODUCTS 
AND DEBT 

INSTRUMENTS
TOTAL ADVISED 
CLIENT ASSETS

CUSTODY 
ASSETS

TOTAL CLIENT 
ASSETS

Home market 95.6 9.1 7.4 112.1 25.6 137.7
Switzerland 1 95.6 9.1 7.4 112.1 25.6 137.7
Focus markets 94.8 7.4 2.6 104.8 0.0 104.8
Germany 19.5 3.9 2.6 26.0 26.0
UK 20.1 1.3 21.4 21.4
Italy 12.9 0.0 12.9 12.9
North America 18.1 0.1 18.2 18.2
Focus APAC 2, LATAM, MEA 24.2 2.1 26.3 26.3
Other markets 21.5 2.4 0.0 23.9 6.4 30.3
Total 211.9 18.9 10.0 240.7 32.0 272.7

1 Including Liechtenstein
2 Singapore, Hong Kong SAR, Australia and Japan

Global client base
Over the last two decades, Vontobel has successfully 
established itself as a global investment firm that focuses 
on wealth management and active asset management. In 
the period from 2003 to mid-2023, it recorded a more than 
fourfold increase in assets under management from CHF 
47.1 billion to CHF 211.9 billion. Today, 55 percent of assets 
under management originate from outside Vontobel’s 
Swiss home market – primarily from the target markets of 
Germany, the UK, Italy and North America, as well as the 
Asia Pacific region (APAC), Latin America (LATAM), Mid-
dle East and Africa (MEA). However, Vontobel is also well 
established in its Swiss home market with a presence in 11 
locations. Clients domiciled in Switzerland account for 
CHF 95.6 billion of assets under management. This under-
scores the high level of trust that clients in our home mar-
ket place in Vontobel. We will continue to actively pursue 
our strategic priorities to enable us to achieve growth out-
side as well as within Switzerland. With our strategic posi-
tioning in its focus markets, Vontobel today has access to 
more than 80 percent of global wealth that requires pro-
fessional investment management. 

In the future, we will place an even stronger focus on large, 
established markets. These markets are characterized by 
their substantial numbers of sophisticated clients whom 
Vontobel can help to realize their objectives – drawing on 
our global investment expertise. In addition to our Swiss 
home market, Vontobel has defined specific focus mar-
kets. They include the US, the world’s largest asset and 
wealth management market. Another focus market is the 
UK, the largest asset management market in the EMEA 
region. Other focus markets are Germany and Italy. In the 
future, Vontobel also wants to expand its activities in 
established markets in the Asia Pacific region – primarily 
Japan and Australia – as well as in selected countries in 
Latin America.
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Growth in client assets driven by market recovery
As a global investment firm specializing in wealth and 
asset management for private and institutional investors, 
as well as in investment solutions, Vontobel has proven 
investment expertise that benefits our clients in all market 
environments. We have around 300 investment experts 
who systematically follow their convictions, also in difficult 
environments, and they are always mindful of long-term 
investment objectives. Assets under management totaled 
CHF 211.9 billion at the end of June 2023. This increase of 
CHF 7.5 billion compared to the end of 2022 was mainly 
attributable to positive performance effects in equity and 
bond markets. The asset base was, however, adversely 
impacted by slightly negative net new money due to the 
strict market focus in Wealth Management and general 
outflows in Asset Management, as well as negative cur-
rency effects.

Development of assets under management

CHF B 30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
Asset Management 108.7 118.3 107.2
Wealth Management 98.1 85.7 92.6
Digital Investing 0.6 0.6 0.5
Centers of Excel-
lence / Reconciliation 4.5 4.0 4.0
Total assets under 
management 211.9 208.6 204.4

The total increase in assets under management of CHF 7.5 
billion compared to the end of 2022 reflects:

	– 	Net new money of  
CHF −0.9 billion

	– 	Positive impact of market effects of 
CHF +10.6 billion

	– 	Negative currency effects of 
CHF −2.2 billion

Assets under management consist of 51 percent institu-
tional assets held in Asset Management and 47 percent 
private client assets held in the Wealth Management and 
Digital Investing Client Units, while 2 percent are attribut-
able to the Centers of Excellence/Reconciliation.

Development of net new money

CHF B H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Asset Management −3.0 −4.0 −6.6
Wealth Management 2.1 3.0 2.4
Digital Investing 0.0 0.0 −0.0
Centers of Excel-
lence / Reconciliation 0.0 0.0 −0.0
Total net new money −0.9 −1.0 −4.2

Since the start of the war in Ukraine, i.e. since February 
2022, institutional investors have reduced risks – especially 
in the case of actively managed assets – and they have 
tended to defer reinvestments to the future. This is reflected 
in the flow of client assets. Even if this negative trend has 
weakened, the business with asset management clients 
continued to experience outflows, which totaled CHF 3.0 
billion on a net basis in the first half of 2023. The continued 
growth in Wealth Management did not fully compensate for 
these outflows. Asset Management experienced net out-
flows across all asset classes. Wealth management clients 
entrusted CHF 2.1 billion of net new assets to Vontobel in 
the first half of 2023. Adjusted for outflows due to our strict 
market focus, annualized net new money growth in Wealth 
Management reached 8.4 percent, thus exceeding 
Vontobel’s own target range of 4–6 percent. Excluding these 
effects, net new money growth in Wealth Management was 
4.5 percent. In Asset Management, however, net new money 
was negative at −5.6 percent. In total, net new money was 
CHF −0.9 billion, corresponding to negative growth of −0.9 
percent. 

Assets under management by investment category 

IN % 30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
Swiss equities 18 18 18
Foreign equities 31 31 29
Bonds 34 36 34
Alternative  
investments 2 2 2
Liquid assets,  
fiduciary investments 13 12 13
Other 1 3 1 3

1 Including structured products and debt instruments

 
The slight shifts in the structure of assets under manage-
ment by investment category in the period under review 
were mainly attributable to the recovery in financial mar-
kets. Consequently, the allocation to equities rose from 47 
percent at the end of 2022 to 49 percent, while the alloca-
tion to bonds and liquidity holdings remained stable.
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Our investment expertise is geared towards our interna-
tional client base – as shown by our broadly diversified 
allocation of assets under management in terms of curren-
cies. A total of 30 percent of assets under management 
comprise investments in Swiss francs. The proportion of 
investments in euros, US dollars and British pounds was 
almost unchanged compared to the end of 2022, while 
investments in other currencies continued to decrease 
slightly.

Assets under management by currency

IN % 30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
CHF 30 28 30
EUR 21 22 21
USD 33 31 32
GBP 6 6 6
Other 11 13 12
 
 

Structure of the income statement 

H1 2023 H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
CHF M IN %1 IN %1 IN %1

Net interest and dividend income 94.5 14 5 12
Net fee and commission income 414.7 60 64 66
Trading income 188.4 27 30 22
Other income −1.5 −0 1 0
Total operating income 696.1 100 100 100

Personnel expense 362.5 52 48 55
General expense 128.7 18 18 21
Depreciation of property, equipment (incl. software) and intangible assets 53.1 8 7 9
Provisions and losses 1.5 0 1 1
Total operating expense 545.8 78 74 86

Profit before taxes 150.3 22 26 14
Taxes 22.7 3 4 1
Group net profit 127.6 19 22 13

1 Share of operating income

Increase in operating income  
reflects higher interest rates 
Vontobel generated operating income of CHF 696.1 mil-
lion in the first half of 2023, an increase of 1 percent com-
pared to the prior-year period (CHF 686.1 million). Reflect-
ing a significant increase in the importance of the interest 
rate business, commission income accounted for 60 per-
cent of operating income, down from 64 percent, while the 
proportion of net interest and dividend income after credit 
losses rose to 14 percent (1H 2022: 5 percent).

Net fee and commission income decreased by 6 percent 
to CHF 414.7 million, mainly due to the 8 percent reduction 
in the average asset base. Advisory and management fees 
decreased from CHF 456.7 million to CHF 404.8 million 
(−11 percent), while administration and custody fees 
declined by 10 percent to CHF 98.5 million. Brokerage fees 
– also part of net fee and commission income – fell by 19 
percent to CHF 38.0 million compared to the prior-year 
period. 

Following a strong start to the year, volatility decreased in 
the second quarter, resulting in lower levels of market 
activity. This was reflected by the muted development of 
trading income, which fell by 8 percent to CHF 188.4 mil-
lion compared to the first half of 2022. Vontobel’s trading 
income mainly comprises income from the issuing, hedg-
ing and market making of structured products and war-
rants – represented by the total in “Securities” and “Other 
financial instruments at fair value” as per note 3 on page 
33. In the period under review, these activities contributed 
CHF 160.7 million (−8 percent compared to the prior-year 
period) to trading income. Income from forex and precious 
metals trading declined by 5 percent to CHF 27.7 million.

Rising interest rates and efforts to further optimize the 
management of the bank’s balance sheet by Treasury, 
while maintaining a conservative risk profile, led to a 190 
percent increase in net interest and dividend income to 
CHF 94.5 million. Other income was slightly negative at 
CHF −1.5 million, compared to CHF 8.9 million in the first 
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half of 2022, which was primarily due to the sale of interest 
rate instruments.

58 percent of our income is generated in foreign curren-
cies, with a large proportion in US dollars, which weak-
ened by an average of 3 percent against the Swiss franc 
compared to the first half of 2022. The euro (−4 percent) 
and the British pound (−7 percent) also weakened against 
the Swiss franc over the same period. At constant 
exchange rates, operating income would therefore have 
been 4 percent higher in the first half of 2023. 

Wealth Management delivers strong result – broad-
based business model proves effective once again
Operating income in Wealth Management totaled CHF 
394.0 million, an increase of 23 percent compared to the 
prior-year period. From August 1, 2022, this figure includes 
income from the former UBS Swiss Financial Advisers AG. 
Vontobel has made targeted investments in the expansion 
of its wealth management offering and in key growth initi-
atives in the past, including increasing its team of advisors 
in 2023, and it will continue to do so going forward. In 
Wealth Management, the gross margin was 82 basis 
points, significantly higher than in the prior-year period (70 
basis points).

In the business with asset management clients – Vontobel’s 
second earnings driver – we generated operating income 
of CHF 203.0 million, compared to CHF 247.1 million (−18 
percent) in the first six months of 2022. This decrease was 
primarily driven by lower assets under management, which 
decreased by an average of 17 percent, and the fact that 
performance fees were largely absent. Asset Management 
achieved a gross margin of 37 basis points in the period 
under review, almost unchanged compared to the pri-
or-year period (38 basis points).

The generally muted demand for leverage and investment 
products among our private clients was reflected by the 
performance of the Digital Investing business, in which 
Vontobel generated operating income of CHF 86.8 million 
in the first six months of 2023 (1H 2022: CHF 120.9 mil-
lion). cosmofunding, the digital platform for private place-
ments and loans for Swiss companies and the public sec-
tor, is also part of Digital Investing. With a traded volume of 
CHF 5.3 billion, cosmofunding achieved further growth in 
the first half of 2023 and expanded its ecosystem with 
new partners and suppliers, thus creating the basis for 
future growth. Higher interest rates have had a positive 
effect on the performance of the business. In total, cosmo-
funding has issued around CHF 28.4 billion in private 
placements and loans since its launch in October 2018.

Operating income by Client Unit / Center of Excellence

CHF M H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Asset Management 203.0 247.1 209.5
Wealth Management 394.0 320.2 325.6
Digital Investing 86.8 120.9 64.7
Centers of Excellence / 
Reconciliation 12.4 −2.1 −0.9

 
Higher operating expense in light  
of strategic growth initiatives
Vontobel is systematically pursuing its mid-term growth 
strategy without losing sight of costs. We take a smart 
approach to managing costs and investments – especially 
in the areas of technology and new talents – in accordance 
with our goals, while always considering the market envi-
ronment. In the period under review, we continued to 
invest in strategic projects while taking measures to con-
tain costs, as previously announced. Vontobel’s operating 
expense was CHF 545.8 million in the first half of 2023, an 
increase of 8 percent compared to the prior-year period. 
This change is attributable to an 11 percent increase in 
personnel expense due to higher accruals for variable 
compensation as well as the targeted expansion of the 
team of advisors in Wealth Management. Average head-
count (full-time equivalents) was 3 percent higher than in 
the prior-year period.

General expense also rose by 4 percent to CHF 128.7 mil-
lion due to ongoing investments to ensure that Vontobel 
remains competitive and close to its clients in the future. 
These investments were mainly reflected in higher IT and 
telecommunications costs. The cost/income ratio was 
78.2 percent in the first half of 2023 and was therefore 
above Vontobel’s own mid-term target of less than 72 per-
cent as well as the very good ratio of 72.8 percent in the 
prior-year period. Depreciation of property, equipment and 
intangible assets of CHF 53.1 million was 6 percent higher 
than in the prior-year period, as planned. 

The volume of capital expenditure on property, equipment 
and software reached CHF 29.9 million (1H 2022: CHF 
52.8 million) in the period under review, with a large pro-
portion of the expenditure once again focusing on digitiza-
tion projects.
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Decline in pre-tax profit
Profit before taxes declined by 17 percent compared to the 
previous year period to CHF 150.3 million. 

One-off effects from the ongoing focusing and streamlin-
ing of the business had an impact in the first half of the year. 
Gross cost reductions of CHF 65 million are expected to be 
achieved by the end of 2023. Of the related cost-to-achieve 
of around CHF 15 million in 2023, CHF 8.5 million were 
incurred in the first half of the year. The adjusted pre-tax 
result therefore totaled CHF 158.8 million, corresponding 
to a decline of 12 percent.

Reconciliation of reported to adjusted  
profit before taxes

CHF M H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Profit before taxes 150.3 180.4 87.0
Integration costs SFA 5.2
Cost-to-achieve 8.5
Profit before taxes on 
an adjusted basis 158.8 180.4 92.2

Group net profit decreased by 16 percent to CHF 127.6 
million (1H 2022: CHF 151.4 million) and earnings per 
share declined to CHF 2.29 (1H 2022: CHF 2.71). Tax 
expense fell by 22 percent. This reduction was primarily 
attributable to differences in the development of profits at 
individual Group companies. The tax rate of 15.1 percent 
was slightly below the prior-year period (16.1 percent).

Vontobel is pursuing a capital-light growth strategy with a 
conservative risk profile – in terms of both organic and 
inorganic growth. In a challenging environment, Vontobel 
generated a return on equity of 12.5 percent (1H 2022: 
14.6 percent) on its strong capital base. 

Negative currency movements
Changes in the value of the Swiss franc have a structural 
impact on Vontobel, given its positioning as an investment 
firm with an international client base and strong roots in its 
Swiss home market. 

Compared to the first half of 2022, the net impact of cur-
rency effects on income and costs reported in Swiss 
francs in the period under review was negative. Based on 
constant exchange rates, profit before taxes was CHF 
160.3 million. The US dollar weakened against the Swiss 
franc by 3 percent, as did other major currencies such as 
the euro (−4 percent). 42 percent of income is generated in 
Swiss francs, followed by 30 percent in US dollars and 17 
percent in euros. On the cost side, the Swiss franc is the 
dominant currency, accounting for 78 percent of expenses, 
while the euro and the US dollar each account for 8 per-
cent of expenses.

Structure of income statement by currency

IN % H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Operating income
CHF 42 42 40
EUR 17 15 16
USD 30 30 30
GBP 7 9 9
Other 5 4 5
Operating expense
CHF 78 77 76
EUR 8 8 9
USD 8 8 8
GBP 4 4 3
Other 3 3 3
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Conservative risk management and continued 
comfortable capital position
Vontobel remains committed to a conservative risk man-
agement approach. At CHF 9.1 million, the average Value 
at Risk in the first half of 2023 was higher than the figure 
for the first half of 2022 (CHF 6.7 million) and the second 
half of 2022 (CHF 8.3 million). This increase was primarily 
due to higher Value at Risk in the “Interest rates” category, 
including credit spreads, due to the changed interest rate 
environment.

Value at Risk (VaR) 

CHF M H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Equities 3.5 4.3 5.3
Interest rates 13.7 6.9 10.9
Currencies 0.7 1.8 1.5
Commodities 0.3 0.5 0.4
Diversification effect −9.2 −6.7 −9.7
Total 9.1 6.7 8.3

Average Value at Risk (6 months) for positions of Vontobel. Historical 
simulation of Value at Risk; 99 % confidence level; 1-day holding 
period; 4-year historical observation period

The CET1 capital ratio increased slightly to 17.3 percent at 
the end of June 2023 (end of 2022: 16.7 percent). The Tier 
1 capital ratio, which is identical to the total capital ratio at 
Vontobel, rose to 24.0 percent (end of 2022: 23.8 percent). 
The capital ratios continue to substantially exceed the reg-
ulatory minimum requirements, including the countercycli-
cal buffer defined by FINMA of 8.0 percent for the CET1 
capital ratio, 9.8 percent for the Tier 1 capital ratio and 
12.2 percent for the total capital ratio for category 3 banks, 
including Vontobel. 

The equity ratio of 6.3 percent and a leverage ratio under 
Basel III of 5.0 percent also reflect Vontobel’s very solid 
capital position. Following the distribution of the dividend 
of CHF 168.7 million in April 2023, shareholders’ equity 
decreased slightly to CHF 2.0 billion, down by 1 percent 
compared to the end of 2022. Furthermore, Vontobel’s 
balance sheet is highly liquid, with a liquidity coverage 
ratio averaging 178.3 percent in the first half of 2023.

Risk-weighted positions

CHF M 30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022
Credit risks 2,187.9 2,211.3 2,058.3
Non-counterparty 
related risks 366.8 384.6 383.9
Market risks 1,513.9 1,258.2 1,280.0
Operational risks 2,622.5 2,560.3 2,581.8
Total 6,691.1 6,414.5 6,304.1

At the end of June 2023, risk-weighted positions totaled 
CHF 6,691.1 million, an increase of 6 percent compared to 
the end of 2022. Positions for operational risk increased by 
2 percent in connection with the general business expan-
sion and positions for credit risks rose by 6 percent. There 
was a net rise in risk-weighted positions for market risk of 
18 percent compared to the end of 2022, mainly due to 
higher interest rate risks, also reflected in the increase in 
trading portfolio assets and “Other financial assets at fair 
value”. Of total risk-weighted positions of CHF 6,691.1 mil-
lion at the end of June 2023 (December 31, 2022: CHF 
6,304.1 million), 33 percent related to credit risks, 23 per-
cent to market risks and 39 percent to operational risks. 5 
percent of risk-weighted positions comprised non-coun-
terparty related risks. 

Shifts in consolidated balance sheet mainly reflect  
new interest rate environment
Total assets increased by 5 percent to CHF 32.1 billion 
compared to the end of 2022. In view of the changed inter-
est rate environment, Treasury took measures on the 
assets side of the balance sheet and clients adapted their 
positioning. Loans to customers decreased by 4 percent 
to CHF 7.1 billion. Reflecting more favorable market senti-
ment, trading portfolio assets increased by 10 percent to 
CHF 5.1 billion and the position “Other financial assets at 
fair value” increased by 18 percent to CHF 9.8 billion, while 
liquid assets decreased slightly to CHF 3.8 billion (−3 per-
cent). Due from banks was also almost unchanged at CHF 
1.6 billion (−1 percent).

Liabilities rose by 5 percent to CHF 30.1 billion compared 
to the end of 2022. While customer deposits decreased 
from CHF 13.2 billion to CHF 11.5 billion, the position 
“Other financial liabilities at fair value” rose by CHF 2.4 bil-
lion to CHF 12.6 billion and other liabilities, which include 
open settlement positions, increased by CHF 1.4 billion to 
CHF 2.9 billion.

19Review of business activities



Capital and liquidity

Eligible and required capital 

CHF M 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Eligible capital
Equity according to balance sheet 2,008.0 2,018.6
Paid-in capital 56.9 56.9
Disclosed reserves 1,887.9 1,845.6
Net profit for the current financial year 127.6 229.8
Deduction for treasury shares −64.3 −113.7
Deduction for minority interests
Deduction for dividends (current estimate) −85.3 −170.6
Deduction for goodwill −529.8 −528.5
Deduction for intangible assets −94.1 −101.1
Deduction for deferred tax assets −13.1 −14.9
Addition (deduction) for losses (gains) due to changes in own credit risk 1.7 −2.6
Deduction for unrealised gains related to financial investments −73.7 −73.2
Deduction for defined benefit pension fund assets (IAS 19) −14.7 −8.8
Other adjustments −43.5 −66.2
Net eligible BIS common equity tier 1 capital (CET1) 1,155.5 1,052.7
Additional tier 1 capital (AT1) 449.8 449.6
Net eligible BIS tier 1 capital 1,605.3 1,502.3
Supplementary capital (tier 2)
Other deductions from total capital
Net eligible regulatory capital (BIS tier 1 + 2) 1,605.3 1,502.3

Risk-weighted positions
Credit risks 2,187.9 2,058.3
Receivables 2,091.8 1,951.8
Price risk relating to equity instruments in the banking book 96.1 106.5
Non-counterparty related risks 366.8 383.9
Market risks 1,513.9 1,280.0
Interest rates 911.8 651.8
Equities 491.5 499.2
Currencies 33.9 44.6
Gold 0.1 1.2
Commodities 76.7 83.2
Operational risk 2,622.5 2,581.8
Total risk-weighted positions 6,691.1 6,304.1

The disclosure of capital requirements, the leverage 
ratio and the liquidity coverage ratio is made in accord-
ance with the requirements set out in FINMA Circular 
16 / 01. The values used to calculate the liquidity cover-
age ratio are simple monthly averages for the relevant 
quarter or half year. The average is calculated based on 
the values shown in the monthly liquidity status reports 
submitted to FINMA and the SNB. This results in three 
data points per quarter.

Since 2019, the liquidity coverage ratio should be at least 
100 percent. The main factors influencing Vontobel’s 
liquidity coverage ratio are cash holdings as high-quality 
liquid assets, customer cash accounts as weighted cash 
outflows, and reverse-repurchase agreements with 
maturities within 30 calendar days as cash inflows.
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Capital ratios in accordance with FINMA Circular 16 / 01

AS A PERCENTAGE OF RISK-WEIGHTED POSITIONS 30.06.2023 31.12.2022
CET1 capital ratio (minimum requirement BIS Basel III excl. capital conservation buffer: 4.5 %)1 17.3 16.7
Tier 1 capital ratio (minimum requirement BIS Basel III excl. capital conservation buffer: 6.0 %)2 24.0 23.8
Total capital ratio (minimum requirement BIS Basel III excl. capital conservation buffer: 8.0 %)3 24.0 23.8
CET1 available to cover BCBS minimum capital and buffer requirements  
after deduction of AT1 and T2 capital requirements which are filled by CET1 12.8 12.2
CET1 available 17.3 16.7
T1 available 21.6 21.4
Eligible regulatory capital available 24.0 23.8

1 Target CET1 capital ratio according to Annex 8 of the CAO plus countercyclical buffer: 8.0 %
2 Target T1 capital ratio according to Annex 8 of the CAO plus countercyclical buffer: 9.8 %
3 Target Total capital ratio according to Annex 8 of the CAO plus countercyclical buffer: 12.2 %

The countercyclical buffer requirement (as a percentage of risk-weighted positions) is 0.2 (31.12.2022: 0.2).
All investments in financial sector companies (<10 %) are risk-weighted for capital calculations (30.06.2023: CHF 27.2 M; 31.12.2022: CHF 27.2 M).

Leverage ratio in accordance with FINMA Circular 15 / 03

30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Net eligible BIS tier 1 capital in CHF M 1,605.3 1,502.3
Total leverage ratio exposure in CHF M 31,827.4 30,025.8
Leverage ratio (unweighted capital ratio in accordance with Basel III) in % 5.0 5.0

Liquidity coverage ratio in accordance with FINMA Circular 15 / 02

AVERAGE H1 2023 Q2 2023 Q1 2023
Total stock of high quality liquid assets (HQLA) in CHF M 9,756.2 9,613.4 9,899.0
Total net cash outflows in CHF M 5,470.8 5,366.7 5,574.8
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) in % 178.3 179.1 177.6

Net Stable Funding Ratio in accordance with FINMA Circular 15 / 02

30.06.2023 31.12.2022
Available stable funding (ASF) in CHF M 15,125.9 15,009.1
Required stable funding (RSF) in CHF M 13,316.3 12,390.0
Net Stable Funding Ratio NSFR in % 113.6 121.1
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Consolidated income statement 

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022
NOTE CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %

Interest and dividend income 1 125.4 47.2 82.2 78.2 166
Interest expense 1 30.7 11.6 13.4 19.1 165
Credit loss (expense) / recovery −0.2 −3.0 −0.0 2.8 93
Net interest and dividend income 1 94.5 32.6 68.8 61.9 190
Fee and commission income 573.0 630.8 560.2 −57.7 −9
Fee and commission expense 158.3 190.4 166.8 −32.0 −17
Net fee and commission income 2 414.7 440.4 393.4 −25.7 −6
Trading income 3 188.4 204.2 134.1 −15.8 −8
Other income 4 −1.5 8.9 2.6 −10.3 −116
Total operating income 696.1 686.1 599.0 10.0 1
Personnel expense 5 362.5 326.2 329.7 36.2 11
General expense 6 128.7 123.3 124.9 5.4 4
Depreciation of property, equipment 
(incl. software) and intangible assets 7 53.1 50.2 53.0 2.9 6
Provisions and losses 8 1.5 6.0 4.4 −4.5 −75
Total operating expense 545.8 505.7 512.0 40.1 8
Profit before taxes 150.3 180.4 87.0 −30.1 −17
Taxes 9 22.7 29.0 8.5 −6.3 −22
Group net profit 127.6 151.4 78.5 −23.8 −16
of which allocated to shareholders of 
Vontobel Holding AG 127.6 151.4 78.5 −23.8 −16

Share information (CHF)

Basic earnings per share 2 2.29 2.71 1.42 −0.43 −16
Diluted earnings per share 2 2.23 2.66 1.35 −0.43 −16

1 A reclassification occurred in H2 2022. As a result, the total for the half-year periods cannot be reconciled with the total in the Annual Report 2022. 
2 Basis: Weighted average number of shares

Consolidated income statement
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022
NOTE CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %

Group net profit according  
to the income statement 127.6 151.4 78.5 −23.8 −16

Other comprehensive income,  
net of tax 10

Other comprehensive income that will 
be reclassified to the income  
statement, net of tax
Currency translation adjustments:
Income during the reporting period −6.3 11.8 2.0 −18.1 −153
Gains and losses transferred  
to the income statement     
Total currency translation adjustments −6.3 11.8 2.0 −18.1 −153
Debt instruments in financial  
investments:  
Income during the reporting period 9.3 −49.9 −22.0 59.1 118
Gains and losses transferred  
to the income statement 4.7 −0.1 −0.8 4.7
Total debt instruments in financial  
investments 13.9 −49.9 −22.8 63.9 128
Total other comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to the income  
statement, net of tax 7.6 −38.2 −20.8 45.8 120

 
Other comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to the income  
statement, net of tax  
Income from equity instruments in 
financial investments 0.3 −4.7 −1.8 5.0 106
Income from defined benefit pension 
plans 4.0 −20.9 −10.5 24.9 119
Total other comprehensive income that 
will not be reclassified to the income 
statement, net of tax 4.3 −25.6 −12.3 29.9 117

 
Total other comprehensive income,  
net of tax 11.9 −63.8 −33.1 75.7 119

 
Comprehensive income 139.5 87.6 45.4 51.9 59
of which allocated to shareholders of 
Vontobel Holding AG 139.5 87.6 45.4 51.9 59

Consolidated statement 
of comprehensive income 
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Assets

30.06.2023 31.12.2022 CHANGE TO 31.12.2022
CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %

Cash 3,771.4 3,884.2 −112.8 −3
Due from banks 1,562.3 1,575.1 −12.8 −1
Receivables from securities financing transactions 145.6 894.0 −748.4 −84
Loans 7,139.8 7,462.3 −322.5 −4
Trading portfolio assets 5,100.4 4,651.7 448.7 10
Positive replacement values 326.3 439.4 −113.1 −26
Other financial assets at fair value 9,805.9 8,297.2 1,508.7 18
Financial investments 1,610.4 1,727.3 −116.8 −7
Investments in associates 3.3 3.7 −0.4 −11
Property, equipment and software 366.8 383.9 −17.1 −4
Goodwill and other intangible assets 623.9 629.6 −5.7 −1
Other assets 1,605.7 560.9 1,044.7 186
Total assets 32,061.7 30,509.2 1,552.5 5

Consolidated balance sheet



25Consolidated financial statements

Liabilities and equity

30.06.2023 31.12.2022 CHANGE TO 31.12.2022
CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %

Due to banks 1,379.0 1,140.5 238.5 21
Payables from securities financing transactions 0.0 92.5 −92.5 −100
Customer deposits 11,453.7 13,240.9 −1,787.2 −13
Trading portfolio liabilities 141.7 170.4 −28.7 −17
Negative replacement values 828.0 1,191.0 −363.0 −30
Other financial liabilities at fair value 12,572.9 10,124.2 2,448.6 24
Debt issued 764.8 1,043.2 −278.4 −27
Provisions 14.1 14.9 −0.8 −5
Other liabilities 2,899.5 1,473.0 1,426.5 97
Total liabilities 30,053.7 28,490.6 1,563.2 5

 
Share capital 56.9 56.9  
Treasury shares −64.3 −113.7 49.4 43
Capital reserve −413.7 −382.9 −30.8 −8
Retained earnings 2,543.0 2,579.8 −36.8 −1
Other components of shareholders’ equity −113.8 −121.4 7.6 6
Shareholders’ equity 2,008.0 2,018.6 −10.6 −1
Minority interests    
Total equity 2,008.0 2,018.6 −10.6 −1

 
Total liabilities and equity 32,061.7 30,509.2 1,552.5 5
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Statement of equity 

Statement of equity

CHF M SHARE CAPITAL TREASURY SHARES CAPITAL RESERVE RETAINED EARNINGS

CURRENCY  
TRANSLATION 

ADJUSTMENTS 1 

UNREALIZED INCOME  
FROM DEBT INSTRU-

MENTS IN FINANCIAL  
INVESTMENTS 1 

 SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY MINORITY INTERESTS

TOTAL  
EQUITY

Balance as of 01.01.2022 56.9 −124.4 −357.8 2,556.7 −62.2 −0.3 2,068.9 2,068.9

Group net profit 151.4 151.4  151.4
Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to the income statement 11.8 −49.9 −38.2 −38.2
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement −25.6 −25.6 −25.6
Comprehensive income    125.8 11.8 −49.9 87.6  87.6

Dividend payment 2 −168.9 −168.9  −168.9
Purchase of treasury shares −64.0 −64.0  −64.0
Sale of treasury shares 10.0 −2.8 7.1 7.1
Share-based compensation expense 23.8 23.8 23.8
Allocations from share-based compensation 96.9 −65.3 31.6  31.6
Other effects         
Ownership-related changes  42.8 −44.3 −168.9   −170.4  −170.4
Balance as of 30.06.2022 56.9 −81.6 −402.1 2,513.7 −50.4 −50.3 1,986.1  1,986.1

Balance as of 01.01.2023 56.9 −113.7 −382.9 2,579.8 −48.4 −73.1 2,018.6  2,018.6

Group net profit 127.6 127.6  127.6
Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to the income statement −6.3 13.9 7.6 7.6
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement 4.3 4.3 4.3
Comprehensive income    131.9 −6.3 13.9 139.5 139.5

Dividend payment 2 −168.7 −168.7  −168.7
Purchase of treasury shares −32.7 −32.7  −32.7
Sale of treasury shares 5.8 −0.6 5.2 5.2
Share-based compensation expense 17.1 17.1 17.1
Allocations from share-based compensation 76.3 −47.3 28.9  28.9
Other effects         
Ownership-related changes  49.4 −30.8 −168.7   −150.1 −150.1
Balance as of 30.06.2023 56.9 −64.3 −413.7 2,543.0 −54.7 −59.1 2,008.0  2,008.0

1 “Currency translation adjustments” and “Unrealized income from debt instruments in financial investments” are reported in the balance sheet item 
“Other components of shareholders’ equity”.

2 Vontobel Holding AG paid a dividend (gross) of CHF 3.00 (previous year CHF 3.00) per registered share with a par value of CHF 1.00 in April 2023.
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Statement of equity

CHF M SHARE CAPITAL TREASURY SHARES CAPITAL RESERVE RETAINED EARNINGS

CURRENCY  
TRANSLATION 

ADJUSTMENTS 1 

UNREALIZED INCOME  
FROM DEBT INSTRU-

MENTS IN FINANCIAL  
INVESTMENTS 1 

 SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY MINORITY INTERESTS

TOTAL  
EQUITY

Balance as of 01.01.2022 56.9 −124.4 −357.8 2,556.7 −62.2 −0.3 2,068.9 2,068.9

Group net profit 151.4 151.4  151.4
Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to the income statement 11.8 −49.9 −38.2 −38.2
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement −25.6 −25.6 −25.6
Comprehensive income    125.8 11.8 −49.9 87.6  87.6

Dividend payment 2 −168.9 −168.9  −168.9
Purchase of treasury shares −64.0 −64.0  −64.0
Sale of treasury shares 10.0 −2.8 7.1 7.1
Share-based compensation expense 23.8 23.8 23.8
Allocations from share-based compensation 96.9 −65.3 31.6  31.6
Other effects         
Ownership-related changes  42.8 −44.3 −168.9   −170.4  −170.4
Balance as of 30.06.2022 56.9 −81.6 −402.1 2,513.7 −50.4 −50.3 1,986.1  1,986.1

Balance as of 01.01.2023 56.9 −113.7 −382.9 2,579.8 −48.4 −73.1 2,018.6  2,018.6

Group net profit 127.6 127.6  127.6
Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to the income statement −6.3 13.9 7.6 7.6
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement 4.3 4.3 4.3
Comprehensive income    131.9 −6.3 13.9 139.5 139.5

Dividend payment 2 −168.7 −168.7  −168.7
Purchase of treasury shares −32.7 −32.7  −32.7
Sale of treasury shares 5.8 −0.6 5.2 5.2
Share-based compensation expense 17.1 17.1 17.1
Allocations from share-based compensation 76.3 −47.3 28.9  28.9
Other effects         
Ownership-related changes  49.4 −30.8 −168.7   −150.1 −150.1
Balance as of 30.06.2023 56.9 −64.3 −413.7 2,543.0 −54.7 −59.1 2,008.0  2,008.0

1 “Currency translation adjustments” and “Unrealized income from debt instruments in financial investments” are reported in the balance sheet item 
“Other components of shareholders’ equity”.

2 Vontobel Holding AG paid a dividend (gross) of CHF 3.00 (previous year CHF 3.00) per registered share with a par value of CHF 1.00 in April 2023.
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Share capital

SHARE CAPITAL AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
NUMBER OF

NUMBER 
OF SHARES

PAR VALUE 
CHF M

NUMBER 
OF SHARES

PAR VALUE 
CHF M

OUTSTANDING 
SHARES 1

Balance as of 01.01.2022 56,875,000 56.9 55,235,116
Balance as of 31.12.2022 56,875,000 56.9 55,202,760
Balance as of 30.06.2023 56,875,000 56.9 55,814,870

The share capital is fully paid in. 

1 Share capital excluding treasury shares

Treasury shares

NUMBER CHF M
Balance as of 01.01.2022 1,639,884 124.4
Purchases 942,679 64.0
Decreases −1,462,344 −106.8
Balance as of 30.06.2022 1,120,219 81.6
Purchases 661,621 39.2
Decreases −109,600 −7.1
Balance as of 31.12.2022 1,672,240 113.7
Purchases 580,457 32.7
Decreases −1,192,567 −82.1
Balance as of 30.06.2023 1,060,130 64.3

As of 30.06.2023 Vontobel held 6,481 (31.12.2022: 6,388) treasury shares to hedge options and structured products. 
Treasury shares were offset against shareholders' equity in accordance with IAS 32.

Share capital and treasury shares 
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Consolidated cash flow statement

CHF M H1 2023 H1 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Group net profit (incl. minorities) 127.6 151.4
Reconciliation to net cash flow from operating activities
Non-cash positions in Group results:
Depreciation and valuation adjustments of property, equipment (incl. software) and intangible assets 53.1 50.2
Credit loss expense / (recovery) 0.2 3.0
Income from investments in associates −0.5 0.9
Change in provisions −0.8 −3.2
Net income from investing activities 10.6 3.3
Net income from disposal of property, equipment (incl. software) and intangible assets
Other non-cash income 21.2 34.3
Net (increase) / decrease in assets relating to banking activities:
Due from / to banks, net 216.0 607.3
Receivables from securities financing transactions 748.4 −439.2
Trading positions and replacement values, net −700.2 2,254.6
Other financial assets / liabilities at fair value, net 939.9 −1,843.8
Loans / customer deposits, net −1,464.8 397.7
Other assets −1,023.8 −616.5
Net increase / (decrease) in liabilities relating to banking activities:
Payables from securities financing transactions −92.5 38.3
Other liabilities 1,452.1 1,025.5
Adjustment for income tax expenses 22.7 29.0
Income taxes paid −38.2 −63.4
Cash flow from operating activities 271.0 1,629.4

Cash flow from investing activities
Dividend from associates 1.0 1.2
Settlement of earn-out payments −0.4
Purchase of property, equipment (incl. software) and intangible assets −25.5 −28.7
Disposal of property, equipment (incl. software) and intangible assets 0.0
Investment in financial instruments −153.6 −576.0
Divestment of financial instruments 250.8 276.1
Cash flow from investing activities 72.6 −327.8

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of leasing liabilities −16.1 −14.6
Net movements in treasury shares −27.5 −56.9
Dividends paid −168.7 −168.9
Issued debt instruments −278.1 200.0
Cash flow from financing activities −490.4 −40.3

Effects of exchange rate differences −1.2 −4.3
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents −148.1 1,257.0
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 5,458.3 8,751.8
Cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet date 5,310.3 10,008.8

The recognition of a lease liability and of a corresponding right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date represents a significant 
non-cash item. Lease liabilities and the balance sheet item “Debt issued” comprise liabilities from financing activities.

Consolidated cash flow statement 
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Information on the consolidated cash flow statement

CHF M 30.06.2023 30.06.2022
Cash and cash equivalents comprise at the balance sheet date
Cash 1 3,771.4 7,906.8
Due from banks on demand 1,538.8 2,101.9
Total 5,310.3 10,008.8

Further information

CHF M H1 2023 H1 2022
Dividends received 45.4 42.3
Interest received 174.9 71.2
Interest paid 28.1 5.4

1 “Cash” comprises cash, giro and demand deposits at the Swiss National Bank and foreign central banks, as well as clearing credit balances 
at recognized clearing centers and clearing banks.
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1. Basis of presentation

Vontobel’s consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). This half-year report meets the 
requirements set out in IAS 34 – Interim Financial Report-
ing. Since it does not contain all of the information and dis-
closures required in the Annual Report, this interim report 
should be read in conjunction with the audited consoli-
dated financial statements in the Annual Report 2022. With 
the exception of the following changes, the accounting 
principles applied in this report are the same as in the con-
solidated financial statements dated December 31, 2022.

2. Changes in financial reporting

2.1 Accounting principles
2.1.1 Standards and interpretations  
that have been implemented 
Vontobel applied the following new or revised standards 
and interpretations for the first time in the financial year 
2023:

IAS 12 – International Tax Reform – Pillar Two  
Model Rules
The new provisions state that no deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities related to OECD pillar two income 
taxes are to be recognized. The new provisions have to be 
applied retrospectively, in accordance with IAS 8.

The first-time application of the changes had no impact on 
Vontobel’s consolidated financial statements.

Other new standards and interpretations
The following new or revised standards and interpreta-
tions did not have any significant impacts on Vontobel 
when applied for the first time or were not relevant for 
Vontobel:

	– IAS 1 – Disclosure of Accounting Policies
	– IAS 8 – Definition of Accounting Estimates
	– IAS 12 – Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 

arising from a Single Transaction
	– IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts

2.1.2 Other changes
Segment reporting
In January 2023, the Marketing function that previously 
formed part of the Marketing & Analytics Center of Excel-
lence was integrated into the Asset Management, Wealth 
Management and Digital Investing Client Units. The Center 
of Excellence was renamed “Communications & Brand 
Marketing”. In the segment reporting, the figures for the 
previous year were adjusted to reflect the new organiza-
tional structure 

2.2 Estimation methods
There were no changes to estimation methods compared 
to the previous year.

Accounting principles 
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1 Net interest and dividend income
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Interest income from banks and customers 107.0 32.2 62.6 74.8 232
Interest income from receivables  
from securities financing transactions 6.7 2.0 6.8 4.7 235
Interest income from financial liabilities 1 0.3 4.7 2.0 −4.4 −94
Total interest income from financial instruments  
at amortized cost 113.9 38.9 71.4 75.0 193
Dividend income from equity instruments  
in financial investments 2 2.0 1.9 0.5 0.1 5
Interest income from debt instruments  
in financial investments 9.4 6.4 10.4 3.1 48
Total interest and dividend income  
from financial investments 11.5 8.3 10.8 3.2 39
Total interest and dividend income 125.4 47.2 82.2 78.2 166
Interest expense from payables  
from securities financing transactions 0.8 0.5 1.9 0.3 60
Interest expense from other financial liabilities  
at amortized cost 29.9 8.1 10.6 21.8 269
Interest expense from financial assets 1 0.0 3.0 0.8 −3.0 −100
Total interest expense from financial instruments  
at amortized cost 30.7 11.6 13.4 19.1 165
Credit loss (expense) / recovery on debt instruments  
in financial investments −0.1 0.0 0.1 −0.1
Other credit loss (expense) / recovery −0.2 −3.0 −0.1 2.8 93
Total credit loss (expense) / recovery −0.2 −3.0 −0.0 2.8 93
Total 94.5 32.6 68.8 61.9 190

1 A reclassification occurred in H2 2022. As a result, the total for the half-year periods cannot be reconciled with the total in the Annual Report 2022. 
2 All income relates to positions that were still held at the end of the reporting period.

2 Net fee and commission income
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Brokerage fees 38.0 46.8 33.8 −8.8 −19
Administration and custody fees 98.5 109.8 98.8 −11.3 −10
Advisory and management fees 404.8 456.7 411.7 −51.9 −11
Issues and corporate finance 2.0 1.6 1.9 0.3 19
Other commission income from securities and  
investment transactions 14.8 13.5 12.1 1.2 9
Total fee and commission income from securities and  
investment transactions 558.0 628.4 558.3 −70.4 −11
Other fee and commission income 15.0 2.3 1.9 12.7 552
Brokerage fees 5.3 7.8 5.5 −2.6 −33
Other commission expense 153.1 182.5 161.3 −29.5 −16
Total commission expense 158.3 190.4 166.8 −32.0 −17
Total 414.7 440.4 393.4 −25.7 −6

Notes to the income statement
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3 Trading income
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Securities 664.0 −2,793.6 −463.1 3,457.6 124
Other financial instruments at fair value −503.3 2,968.8 587.9 −3,472.0 −117
Forex and precious metals 27.7 29.1 9.3 −1.4 −5
Total 188.4 204.2 134.1 −15.8 −8

The following table shows income for the period for finan-
cial instruments in the balance sheet position “Other 
financial liabilities at fair value” due to changes in own 
credit risk:

Income for the period

H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022
CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %

Realized income −0.1 −0.0 −0.1 −0.1
Unrealized income −1.6 3.9 −2.7 −5.5 −141
Total −1.7 3.9 −2.7 −5.6 −144

The following table shows cumulative income for financial 
instruments in the balance sheet position “Other financial 
liabilities at fair value” due to changes in own credit risk:

Cumulative income

30.06.2023 30.06.2022 31.12.2022 CHANGE TO 31.12.2022
CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %

Realized income 1.7 1.9 1.8 −0.1 −6
Unrealized income −1.7 2.6 −0.1 −1.6
Total 0.0 4.5 1.7 −1.7 −100

Cumulative unrealized income is shown in the balance sheet item “Other financial liabilities at fair value” and will be completely reversed over 
the term of the relevant instruments, provided they are not redeemed or repurchased prior to their contractual maturity. 
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4 Other income 
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Real estate income 1 0.4 0.7 0.5 −0.3 −43
Income from the sale of property and equipment −0.0  −0.0 −0.0
Income from the sale of debt instruments  
in financial investments −4.2 −0.4 −0.1 −3.9
Income from investments in associates 0.5 −0.9 0.5 1.5 167
of which share of profit 0.4 0.3 0.5 0.1 33
of which impairments  −1.6 0.0 1.6 100
of which effect from capital increase 0.1 0.4 0.0 −0.2 −50
Other income 1.8 9.4 1.8 −7.7 −82
Other expense −0.0 −0.0 −0.0 −0.0
Total −1.5 8.9 2.6 −10.3 −116

1 Income from the subleasing of business premises

5 Personnel expense
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Salaries and bonuses 302.0 264.1 264.2 37.9 14
Pension and other employee benefit plans 22.2 28.6 29.2 −6.5 −23
Other social contributions 23.3 21.5 21.2 1.8 8
Other personnel expense 14.9 11.9 15.1 3.0 25
Total 362.5 326.2 329.7 36.2 11

The item “Salaries and bonuses” includes the expense for share-based compensation of CHF 22.1 M (H1 2022: CHF 27.2 M; H2 2022:  
CHF 20.5 M), of which CHF 17.1 M (H1 2022: CHF 22.2 M; H2 2022: CHF 16.3 M) relates to performance shares, CHF 2.7 M (H1 2022: CHF 2.9 M; 
H2 2022: CHF 1.8 M) to the awarding of bonus shares at preferential terms and deferred compensation in shares of CHF 2.2 M (H1 2022:  
CHF 2.2 M; H2 2022: CHF 2.3 M) as well as deferred compensation in cash of CHF 4.5 M (H1 2022: CHF 2.1 M; H2 2022: CHF 3.7 M).

6 General expense
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Occupancy expense 7.3 6.0 5.8 1.4 23
IT, telecommunications and other equipment 66.3 61.2 58.2 5.1 8
Travel and representation, public relations, marketing 15.5 15.6 18.0 −0.1 −1
Consulting and audit fees 23.9 19.8 22.7 4.1 21
Other general expense 15.7 20.7 20.3 −5.0 −24
Total 128.7 123.3 124.9 5.4 4
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7 Depreciation of property, equipment (incl. software) and intangible assets
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Depreciation of property and equipment (incl. software) 46.1 45.1 46.3 1.0 2
Amortization of other intangible assets 7.0 5.1 6.7 1.9 37
Impairments of property and equipment (incl. software) 0.0  0.0 0.0
Reversal of impairments of property and equipment  
(incl. software)   0.0  
Total 53.1 50.2 53.0 2.9 6

8 Provisions and losses
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Increase in provisions 0.1 3.0 3.7 −2.9 −97
Release of provisions  −3.5 −0.8 3.5 100
Other 1.5 6.5 1.5 −5.1 −78
Total 1.5 6.0 4.4 −4.5 −75

9 Taxes
H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022 CHANGE TO H1 2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Current income taxes 23.3 26.0 25.2 −2.7 −10
Deferred income taxes −0.6 3.0 −16.6 −3.6 −120
Total 22.7 29.0 8.5 −6.3 −22

10 Tax effects to other comprehensive income
H1 2023

CHF M
AMOUNT 

BEFORE TAX
TAX INCOME/  

(EXPENSE)
AMOUNT  

NET OF TAX
Currency translation adjustments during the reporting period −6.3  −6.3
Currency translation adjustments transferred to the income statement    
Income from debt instruments in financial investments during the reporting period 11.3 −2.0 9.3
Income from debt instruments in financial investments transferred to the income statement 5.8 −1.1 4.7
Income from equity instruments in financial investments 0.4 −0.1 0.3
Income from defined benefit pension plans 5.0 −1.0 4.0
Total 16.1 −4.2 11.9
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H1 2022

CHF M
AMOUNT 

BEFORE TAX
TAX INCOME/  

(EXPENSE)
AMOUNT  

NET OF TAX
Currency translation adjustments during the reporting period 11.8  11.8
Currency translation adjustments transferred to the income statement    
Income from debt instruments in financial investments during the reporting period −60.9 11.0 −49.9
Income from debt instruments in financial investments transferred to the income statement −0.1 0.0 −0.1
Income from equity instruments in financial investments −5.9 1.1 −4.7
Income from defined benefit pension plans −26.1 5.2 −20.9
Total −81.2 17.4 −63.8

H2 2022

CHF M
AMOUNT 

BEFORE TAX
TAX INCOME/  

(EXPENSE)
AMOUNT  

NET OF TAX
Currency translation adjustments during the reporting period 2.0  2.0
Currency translation adjustments transferred to the income statement    
Income from debt instruments in financial investments during the reporting period −27.1 5.0 −22.0
Income from debt instruments in financial investments transferred to the income statement −1.0 0.2 −0.8
Income from equity instruments in financial investments −2.3 0.4 −1.8
Income from defined benefit pension plans −13.4 2.9 −10.5
Total −41.6 8.6 −33.1
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11 Fair value of financial instruments

11a Financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table shows the assignment to the fair value 
hierarchy of those financial instruments that are measured 
at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be  

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

CHF M LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3
30.06.2023 

TOTAL
Assets
Due from banks 1  1.1  1.1
Loans 1     
Trading portfolio assets 3,681.6 1,418.2 0.5 5,100.4
Debt instruments 563.7 322.9  886.6
Equity instruments 2,765.0  0.5 2,765.5
Units in investment funds 352.9  0.0 352.9
Precious metals  795.2  795.2
Cryptocurrencies  300.2  300.2
Positive replacement values 326.3  326.3
Other financial assets at fair value 6,834.7 2,968.3 2.9 9,805.9
Debt instruments 2 6,791.2 2,904.0  9,695.2
Equity instruments 0.0  0.0 0.0
Units in investment funds 43.4  2.9 46.3
Structured products  64.4  64.4
Financial investments 1,363.7 124.1 122.7 1,610.4
Debt instruments 1,363.7 124.1  1,487.8
Equity instruments   122.7 122.7
Other assets    3.3 3.3
Total financial assets at fair value 11,880.0 4,838.0 129.4 16,847.4

Liabilities
Due to banks 1  59.7  59.7
Customer deposits 1  440.3  440.3
Trading portfolio liabilities 140.3 1.4  141.7
Debt instruments 73.9 1.4  75.3
Equity instruments 66.4   66.4
Units in investment funds 0.0   0.0
Negative replacement values  828.0  828.0
Other financial liabilities at fair value 3  12,572.9  12,572.9
Structured products   10,086.4  10,086.4
Debt instruments   2,486.5  2,486.5
Other liabilities     
Total financial liabilities at fair value 140.3 13,902.3  14,042.5

1 These positions contain receivables or liabilities in the form of precious metals.
2 In the case of debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, the difference between the carrying amount (fair value) and the 

contractually agreed redemption amount at maturity was CHF −224.6 M.
3 Level 2 of the balance sheet item “Other financial liabilities at fair value” comprises listed issued products with a fair value of CHF 4,722.2 M.

Risk related to balance sheet 
positions
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Financial instruments measured at fair value

CHF M LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3
31.12.2022  

TOTAL
Assets
Due from banks 1  3.4  3.4
Loans 1  0.0  0.0
Trading portfolio assets 3,310.2 1,340.9 0.5 4,651.7
Debt instruments 565.4 370.6  936.0
Equity instruments 2,444.7  0.5 2,445.3
Units in investment funds 300.0  0.0 300.0
Precious metals  791.3  791.3
Cryptocurrencies  179.0  179.0
Positive replacement values  439.4  439.4
Other financial assets at fair value 5,334.6 2,959.3 3.2 8,297.2
Debt instruments 2 5,291.3 2,884.0  8,175.3
Equity instruments 0.0  0.2 0.2
Units in investment funds 43.3  3.0 46.3
Structured products  75.4  75.4
Financial investments 1,596.5 8.5 122.3 1,727.3
Debt instruments 1,596.5 8.5  1,605.0
Equity instruments   122.3 122.3
Other assets    3.3 3.3
Total financial assets at fair value 10,241.3 4,751.6 129.4 15,122.3

Liabilities
Due to banks 1  60.8  60.8
Customer deposits 1  489.8  489.8
Trading portfolio liabilities 167.6 2.9  170.4
Debt instruments 82.9 2.9  85.8
Equity instruments 81.8   81.8
Units in investment funds 2.8   2.8
Negative replacement values  1,191.0  1,191.0
Other financial liabilities at fair value 3  10,124.2  10,124.2
Structured products  8,811.6  8,811.6
Debt instruments  1,312.7  1,312.7
Other liabilities     
Total financial liabilities at fair value 167.6 11,868.6  12,036.2

1 These positions contain receivables or liabilities in the form of precious metals.
2 In the case of debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, the difference between the carrying amount (fair value) and the 

contractually agreed redemption amount at maturity was CHF −188.8 M.
3 Level 2 of the balance sheet item “Other financial liabilities at fair value” comprises listed issued products with a fair value of CHF 4,170.7 M.



39Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Level 1 instruments
In the fair value hierarchy defined in IFRS 13, level 1 instru-
ments are those financial instruments whose fair value is 
based on quoted prices in active markets. This category 
essentially comprises almost all equity instruments and 
government bonds, liquid debt instruments issued by pub-
lic sector entities and companies, as well as investment 
funds for which a binding net asset value is published at 
least daily.

Mid-market prices are used for the valuation of debt instru-
ments in the trading book, provided the market price risks 
from these positions are offset fully or to a significant 
extent by other positions in the trading book. For the valu-
ation of other debt instruments, bid prices are used in the 
case of long positions and ask prices in the case of short 
positions. For equity instruments and listed investment 
funds, the closing prices of the relevant markets are used. 
Published net asset values are used in the case of unlisted 
investment funds. For foreign currencies, generally 
accepted prices are applied.

No valuation adjustments are made in the case of level 1 
instruments.

Level 2 instruments
Level 2 instruments are financial instruments whose fair 
value is based on quoted prices in markets that are not 
active or on a valuation method where significant input 
parameters can be observed directly or indirectly. This 
mainly includes derivatives, products issued by Vontobel 
and debt instruments issued by public sector entities and 
companies with reduced market liquidity, investment 
funds for which a binding net asset value is published at 
least quarterly, precious metals and cryptocurrencies.

Generally accepted valuation models and quoted prices in 
markets that are not active are used to determine the fair 
value of derivatives, including option components of struc-
tured products. The present value method is used to 
determine the fair value of the interest rate components of 
issued products. To measure the fair value of debt instru-
ments where quoted prices are available but the low trad-
ing volume means there is no active market, the same rules 
apply to the use of mid-market prices and bid or ask prices 
as for the corresponding level 1 instruments. The valuation 
of debt instruments for which no quoted prices are availa-
ble is carried out using generally accepted methods. Pub-
lished net asset values are used in the case of investment 
funds. For precious metals and cryptocurrencies, the fair 
value is derived from the prices of the corresponding 
futures.

The valuation models take account of the relevant param-
eters such as contract specifications, the market prices of 
the underlying assets, foreign exchange rates, market 
interest rates or funding rates, default risks, volatilities and 
correlations. Vontobel’s credit risk is only taken into 
account when determining the fair value of financial liabili-
ties if market participants would consider it when calculat-
ing prices. OTC derivatives are traded only on a collateral-
ized basis, which is why own credit risk (as well as 
third-party credit risk in the case of receivables) is not 
included in the valuation.

Level 3 instruments
Level 3 instruments are financial instruments whose fair 
value is based on a valuation method that uses at least one 
significant input parameter that cannot be observed 
directly or indirectly in the market. They primarily include 
several unlisted equity instruments in financial invest-
ments. 

The fair value of these equity instruments is based on the 
proportionate share of the net asset value, taking account 
of any further valuation-relevant factors.

The following table shows the change in level 3 financial 
instruments in Vontobel’s balance sheet and the income 
on the positions as of the balance sheet date.
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Level 3 financial instruments 

CHF M

FINANCIAL  
INSTRUMENTS 
AT FAIR VALUE 

THROUGH 
PROFIT OR 

LOSS
FINANCIAL 

INVESTMENTS
OTHER 

ASSETS 1 

30.06.2023  
TOTAL 

FIANCIAL 
ASSETS

OTHER 
LIABILITIES

30.06.2023  
TOTAL 

FINANCIAL  
LIABILITIES

Balance sheet
Holdings at the beginning of the year 3.8 122.3 3.3 129.4   
Additions in scope of consolidations     
Disposals from scope of consolidation       
Investments 0.0   0.0   
Disposals       
Redemptions −0.0   −0.0   
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in the income statement −0.3  −0.3   
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in other comprehensive income  0.4 0.4  
Change recognized  
in shareholders’ equity      
Reclassifications to level 3       
Reclassifications from level 3       
Total carrying amount  
at balance sheet date 3.4 122.7 3.3 129.4   

Income in the financial year on holdings at balance sheet date H1 2023 H1 2023
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in the income statement −0.3   −0.3   
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in other comprehensive income  0.4  0.4   

1 This item contains the asset from an earn-out-agreement relating to the acquisition of UBS Swiss Financial Advisers AG, of today’s Vontobel 
Swiss Financial Advisers AG.
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Level 3 financial instruments 

CHF M

FINANCIAL  
INSTRUMENTS 
AT FAIR VALUE 

THROUGH 
PROFIT OR 

LOSS
FINANCIAL 

INVESTMENTS
OTHER 

ASSETS

30.06.2022  
TOTAL 

FINANCIAL  
ASSETS

OTHER 
LIABILITIES 1 

30.06.2022  
TOTAL 

FINANCIAL  
LIABILITIES

Balance sheet
Holdings at the beginning of the year 5.1 130.5  135.5 −1.2 −1.2
Additions in scope of consolidations       
Disposals from scope of consolidation       
Investments 0.0   0.0
Disposals −9.9   −9.9   
Redemptions −0.0   −0.0 0.4 0.4
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in the income statement 8.5   8.5 0.8 0.8
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in other comprehensive income  −5.9  −5.9   
Change recognized  
in shareholders’ equity       
Reclassifications to level 3 0.5   0.5   
Reclassifications from level 3       
Total carrying amount  
at balance sheet date 4.2 124.6  128.8   

Income in the financial year on holdings at balance sheet date H1 2022 H1 2022
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in the income statement 0.2   0.2   
Net gains / (losses) recognized  
in other comprehensive income  −5.9  −5.9   

1 This item comprises the liability from an earn-out agreement relating to the acquisition of the US-based private clients portfolio from 
Lombard Odier.
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Valuation adjustments
The fair value of level 2 and level 3 instruments is always an 
estimate or an approximation of a value that cannot be 
determined with absolute certainty. In addition, the valua-
tion methods used do not always reflect all the factors that 
are relevant when determining fair value. To ensure appro-
priate valuations in the case of products issued by Vontobel 
and OTC contracts, further factors such as model uncer-
tainties and liquidity risks are taken into account where 
this is deemed necessary. Adjustments made due to 
model uncertainties reflect the limits of the valuation 
model used. Adjustments made due to liquidity risks take 
account of pricing risks related to hedging positions. Man-
agement believes it is necessary and appropriate to take 
these factors into account in order to correctly determine 
fair value.

The appropriateness of the valuation of financial instru-
ments that are not traded in an active market is ensured 
through the application of clearly defined methods and 
processes as well as independent controls. The control 
processes comprise the analysis and approval of new 
instruments, the regular analysis of risks as well as gains 
and losses, the verification of prices and the examination 
of the models on which the estimates of the fair value of 
financial instruments are based. These controls are con-
ducted by units that possess the relevant specialist knowl-
edge and operate independently from the trading and 
investment functions. 

Sensitivity of fair values of level 3 instruments
A change in the net asset value of unlisted equity instru-
ments leads to a proportional change in fair value. A reason-
ably realistic change in input parameters has no significant 
impact on Vontobel’s consolidated financial statements.

Day 1 profit
For level 1 and level 2 instruments, any difference between 
the transaction price and fair value – referred to as “day 1 
profit” – is recorded in “Trading income” in the case of 
trading portfolio assets and liabilities, other financial 
instruments at fair value and derivative financial instru-
ments. It is recorded in “Other comprehensive income” in 
the case of financial investments.

For level 3 instruments, “day 1 profit” is deferred and only 
recognized through profit or loss at a later point in time. 
During the financial year and the previous year, there were 
no level 3 instruments with deferred “day 1 profit”.

Reclassifications within the fair value hierarchy 
In the first half 2023 (H1 2022 and H2 2022 respectively), 
positions with a fair value of CHF 133.5 million (H1 2022: CHF 
222.9 million, H2 2022: CHF 160.3 million) were reclassified 
from level 1 to level 2 and positions with a fair value of CHF 
705.0 million (H1 2022: CHF 18.3 million, H2 2022: CHF 
61.9 million) were reclassified from level 2 to level 1. In the 
event of changes in the availability of market prices (market 
liquidity) or of binding net asset values of investment funds, 
reclassifications are made at the end of the period under 
review. 
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11b Financial instruments measured at amortized cost
The following table shows the carrying amount, estimated 
fair value and assignment to the fair value hierarchy of 

 
those financial instruments that are measured at amor-
tized cost.

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost 

30.06.2023 31.12.2022

FAIR VALUE
CARRYING 

AMOUNT FAIR VALUE
CARRYING 

AMOUNT
CHF M LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
Assets
Cash 3,771.4   3,771.4 3,771.4 3,884.2 3,884.2
Due from banks   1,561.2  1,561.2 1,561.2 1,571.6 1,571.6
Receivables from securities 
financing transactions   145.6  145.6 145.6 894.0 894.0
Loans 1   7,013.3  7,013.3 7,139.8 7,253.2 7,462.3
Other assets 2 47.8 1,433.0  1,480.8 1,480.8 467.5 467.5
Total 3,819.2 10,153.1  13,972.3 14,098.7 14,070.5 14,279.5

Liabilities
Due to banks 1  1,319.3  1,319.3 1,319.3 1,079.7 1,079.7
Payables from securities 
financing transactions  0.0  0.0 0.0 92.5 92.5
Customer deposits 1  11,013.5  11,013.5 11,013.5 12,751.0 12,751.0
Debt issued  425.8 315.0  740.8 764.8 1,032.2 1,043.2
Other liabilities 2 0.2 1,968.1  1,968.3 1,968.3 1,197.9 1,197.9
Total 426.0 14,615.9  15,041.9 15,065.9 16,153.4 16,164.4

1 Excludes receivables or liabilities in the form of precious metals. 
2 The item mainly includes the accrued interest as well as open settlement positions.

 
For financial instruments that have a maturity or a refi-
nancing profile of a maximum of one year, it is assumed 
that the carrying amount corresponds closely enough to 
the fair value. For financial instruments that have a maturity 
or a refinancing profile of over one year, fair value is deter-
mined using the present value method. These types of 
financial instruments are included almost exclusively in 
loans to customers. For the valuation of the AT1 bond, the 
ask price is used.

12 IBOR reform

As of December 31, 2021, Vontobel had adjusted all 
LIBOR-based positions in CHF, EUR, GBP and JPY. In the 
first half of 2023, the remaining positions based on USD 
LIBOR were migrated to an alternative interest rate.
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13 Off-balance sheet business
30.06.2023 31.12.2022 CHANGE TO 31.12.2022

CHF M CHF M CHF M IN %
Contingent liabilities 358.8 307.0 51.8 17
Irrevocable commitments 103.3 92.0 11.3 12
Commitments for capital increases and capital contributions 0.2 0.2 −0.0 0
Fiduciary transactions 4,951.1 3,969.0 982.1 25
Contract volumes of derivatives 43,335.3 39,808.3 3,527.0 9

14 Litigation

In connection with the fraud committed by Bernard Mad-
off, the liquidators of investment vehicles that invested 
directly or indirectly in Madoff funds have filed lawsuits 
with various courts against more than 100 banks and cus-
todians. The litigation is targeted at investors who 
redeemed their investments in these vehicles between 
2004 and 2008. The liquidators are demanding that the 
investors repay the sums involved because they consider 
them to have been obtained unjustly as a result of the 
redemptions. Since the liquidators often only know the 
names of the investors’ custodian banks, they have filed  

the lawsuits against them. Several legal entities of Vontobel 
are or may be affected directly or indirectly by the litigation 
in their capacity as a bank or custodian. The claims filed 
against Vontobel since 2010 concern the redemption of 
investments. The litigation amounts total around USD 44.1 
million. However, based on the information currently availa-
ble to it, Vontobel believes the probability of a lawsuit result-
ing in an outflow of funds is low and it has therefore decided 
not to set aside any provisions for such a lawsuit, but rather 
to disclose the amount under contingent liabilities.

15 Client assets

Client assets is a broader term than assets under manage-
ment and comprises all bankable assets that are managed 
by or deposited with Vontobel, including assets that are 
held solely for transaction or custody purposes and for 

which further services are provided. It also comprises 
investment products offered by Financial Products to give 
private and institutional clients access to all asset classes 
and markets. 

Client assets

30.06.2023 31.12.2022 CHANGE TO 31.12.2022
CHF B CHF B CHF B IN %

Assets under management 211.9 204.4 7.4 4
Other advised client assets 18.9 14.5 4.4 30
Structured products and debt instruments outstanding 10.0 7.7 2.2 29
Total advised client assets 240.7 226.6 14.1 6
Custody assets 32.0 27.9 4.1 15
Total client assets 272.7 254.6 18.2 7

Off-balance sheet business 
and other information
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Assets under management

30.06.2023 31.12.2022 CHANGE TO 31.12.2022
CHF B CHF B CHF B IN %

Assets in self-managed collective investment instruments 49.2 48.6 0.6 1
Assets with management mandate 78.5 76.2 2.3 3
Other assets under management 84.2 79.6 4.6 6
Total assets under management 211.9 204.4 7.5 4
of which double counts 6.4 5.8 0.6 10

Calculated in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA) concerning accounting rules 
for financial institutions and Vontobel internal guidelines.

Development of assets under management

CHF B H1 2023 H1 2022 H2 2022
Total assets under management (incl. double counts) at the beginning of the period 204.4 243.7 208.6
Change attributable to net new money −0.9 −1.0 −4.2
Change attributable to market value 8.4 −34.0 −6.3
Change attributable to other effects 1 6.2
Total assets under management (incl. double counts) at the balance sheet date 211.9 208.6 204.4

1 H2 2022: Positive impact of CHF 6.2 billion due to the acquisition of UBS Swiss Financial Advisers AG, of today’s Vontobel Swiss Financial 
Advisers AG

Assets under management and net  
inflows / outflows of new money
Assets under management are calculated and reported in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the Swiss Finan-
cial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA) concerning 
accounting rules for financial institutions (FINMA Circular 
20 / 01). Assets under management comprise all of the 
assets managed or held for investment purposes of pri-
vate, corporate and institutional clients. This includes all 
customer deposits in the form of savings and investments 
accounts, fixed-term and fiduciary deposits and all valued 
assets. Assets under management that are deposited with 
third parties are included to the extent that they are man-
aged by a Vontobel company. Assets under management 
only include those assets on which Vontobel generates 
considerably higher income than on assets that are held 
solely for custody purposes or the execution of transac-
tions. These types of custody assets are reported sepa-
rately. Assets that are counted more than once, i.e. in sev-
eral categories of assets under management that are to be 
disclosed, are shown under double counts. They primarily 
include shares in self-managed collective investment 
instruments as well as strategic certificates (actively man-
aged certificates, tracker certificates) in client portfolios.

Net inflows or outflows of assets under management dur-
ing the reporting period consist of the acquisition of new  
clients, the departure of clients as well as inflows and out-

flows of assets from existing clients. This also includes the 
borrowing and the repayment of loans, as well as the dis-
tribution of collective capital investments. The calculation 
of the net inflow or outflow of new money is performed at 
the level “Total assets under management”. If there is a 
change in the service provided, resulting in the reclassifi-
cation of assets under management as assets held for 
custody purposes or vice versa, this is recorded as an out-
flow of new money or an inflow of new money, respectively. 
Securities-related and currency-related changes in market 
value, interest and dividends, fee charges, loan interest 
paid and the impacts of acquisitions and disposals in 
Vontobel’s subsidiaries or businesses do not constitute 
inflows or outflows of assets.

In the case of assets under discretionary management, the 
client delegates portfolio investment activities to a 
Vontobel company. Assets under discretionary manage-
ment comprise client assets where Vontobel decides how 
the funds are to be invested based on a prior structured 
analysis of the client’s risk appetite and risk capacity. The 
information relates to assets deposited with Group com-
panies as well as with third parties for which Vontobel 
exercises a management mandate. 

With assets under non-discretionary management with 
account and portfolio management, it is assumed that the 
client himself follows developments in the international 
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capital markets and takes investment decisions. The client 
requires an account for the settlement of transactions and 
a custody account for the safekeeping of securities. The 
client is not actively offered advice.

Other advised client assets
Other advised client assets include the assets of clients 
with special relationships that cannot be reported either 
as assets under management or custody assets. In addi-
tion, assets in self-managed collective investment vehicles 
without discretionary portfolio management or without 
individual sales are also classed as other client assets.

 

16 Events after the balance sheet date

No events have occurred since the balance sheet date that 
affect the relevance of the information provided in the half-
year 2023 financial statements and would therefore need 
to be disclosed. 
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17 Segment reporting principles

Segment reporting reflects the organizational structure of 
Vontobel as well as internal reporting to the Executive 
Committee – Vontobel’s chief operating decision maker – 
which is advised and supported by the Global Executive 
Board. This reporting forms the basis for the assessment of 
the financial performance of the segments and the alloca-
tion of resources to the segments.

Vontobel comprises three Client Units and seven Centers 
of Excellence.

The Client Units serve the following client groups and cli-
ent needs:

	– The Asset Management Client Unit focuses primarily 
on institutional clients such as pension funds, insur-
ance companies and sovereign wealth funds, as well 
as third-party banks in the wholesale fund business.

	– The Wealth Management Client Unit serves wealthy 
private clients (including UHNWIs), financial interme-
diaries, entrepreneurs and decision makers from the 
SME segment.

	– The Digital Investing Client Unit bundles investment 
solutions for private investors, either directly or  
via ecosystems, and it also concentrates on the 
end-clients business with structured products.

All activities that are not directly related to client contact 
are bundled within the following Centers of Excellence: 
Investments, Structured Solutions & Treasury, Technology 
& Services, Communications & Brand Marketing, Finance 
& Risk, Human Resources and Legal & Compliance.

Direct costs are allocated to the Client Units and Centers 
of Excellence. Services provided between the individual 
units are not subject to charges. Income taxes are man-
aged at Group level and are therefore not assigned to 
the Client Units and Centers of Excellence.

The Client Units represent the operating and reportable 
segments according to IFRS 8. Centers of Excellence and 
reclassifications are shown in the column “Centers of 
Excellence / Reconciliation”. Segment reporting is basi-
cally subject to the same accounting principles as the con-
solidated financial statements.

For information on changes to the segment reporting, 
please refer to section 2.1.2 of the accounting principles.

Segment reporting
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Segment reporting

CHF M
ASSET  

MANAGEMENT
WEALTH  

MANAGEMENT
DIGITAL  

INVESTING

CENTERS OF 
EXCELLENCE / 

RECONCILIATION
H1 2023 

TOTAL
Net interest and dividend income 0.8 105.5 2.3 −14.2 94.5
Net fee and commission income 202.2 230.9 −3.8 −14.6 414.7
Trading income and other operating income −0.1 57.5 88.3 41.2 186.9
Total operating income 203.0 394.0 86.8 12.4 696.1
Personnel expense 35.1 108.7 5.4 213.3 362.5
General expense 9.7 18.5 5.2 95.3 128.7
Depreciation of property, equipment (incl. software)  
and intangible assets 1.5 5.9 0.4 45.3 53.1
Provisions and losses 0.1 1.1 0.0 0.3 1.5
Total operating expense 46.4 134.2 10.9 354.3 545.8
Profit before taxes 156.6 259.8 75.9 −342.0 150.3
Taxes 22.7
Group net profit 127.6
of which allocated to shareholders of Vontobel Holding AG 127.6

Additional information
Assets under Management (CHF B)1 108.7 98.1 0.6 4.5 211.9
Net new money (CHF B) −3.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 −0.9
Employees (full-time equivalents) 190.7 690.5 47.3 1,292.1 2,220.6

1 To make the segment reporting more informative, assets under management are now disclosed instead of client assets. 

Information on regions 1

CHF M SWITZERLAND
EUROPE EXCL. 
SWITZERLAND AMERICAS

OTHER  
COUNTRIES 2 CONSOLIDATION

H1 2023  
TOTAL

Operating income related to  
external customers 471.8 118.7 31.7 73.8 696.1
Assets 22,056.4 3,316.9 61.6 11,104.0 −4,477.0 32,061.7
Property, equipment and  
intangible assets 916.1 72.1 1.3 1.3 990.8
Additions to property, equipment  
(incl. software) and intangible assets 3 29.3 0.6 0.0 0.1 29.9

1 Reporting is based on operating locations
2 Mainly United Arab Emirates
3 Including additions due to changes in the scope of consolidation 
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Segment reporting

CHF M
ASSET  

MANAGEMENT
WEALTH  

MANAGEMENT
DIGITAL  

INVESTING

CENTERS OF 
EXCELLENCE / 

RECONCILIATION
H1 2022 

TOTAL
Net interest and dividend income −0.1 38.4 0.7 −6.4 32.6
Net fee and commission income 247.7 216.4 −4.6 −19.1 440.4
Trading income and other operating income −0.5 65.4 124.9 23.3 213.1
Total operating income 247.1 320.2 120.9 −2.1 686.1
Personnel expense 1 33.9 91.2 4.5 196.6 326.2
General expense 1 10.6 12.0 4.4 96.2 123.3
Depreciation of property, equipment (incl. software)  
and intangible assets 1.5 4.0 0.1 44.7 50.2
Provisions and losses 0.4 2.3 3.4 6.0
Total operating expense 46.4 109.5 9.0 340.9 505.7
Profit before taxes 200.7 210.8 111.9 −343.0 180.4
Taxes 29.0
Group net profit 151.4
of which allocated to shareholders of Vontobel Holding AG 151.4

Additional information
Assets under Management (CHF B)2 118.3 85.7 0.6 4.0 208.6
Net new money (CHF B) −4.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 −1.0
Employees (full-time equivalents) 198.9 623.7 46.8 1,290.4 2,159.8

1 The figures were adjusted to reflect the new organizational structure.
2 To make the segment reporting more informative, assets under management are now disclosed instead of client assets.

Information on regions 1 

CHF M SWITZERLAND
EUROPE EXCL. 
SWITZERLAND AMERICAS

OTHER  
COUNTRIES 2 CONSOLIDATION

H1 2022  
TOTAL

Operating income related to  
external customers 413.4 154.0 39.9 78.7 686.1
Assets 26,238.9 2,950.7 83.9 8,016.2 −4,346.7 32,943.0
Property, equipment and  
intangible assets 838.4 77.2 3.9 3.2 922.8
Additions to property, equipment  
(incl. software) and intangible assets 3 46.8 3.5 0.6 1.9 52.8

1 Reporting is based on operating locations
2 Mainly United Arab Emirates
3 Including additions due to changes in the scope of consolidation
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Segment reporting

CHF M
ASSET  

MANAGEMENT
WEALTH  

MANAGEMENT
DIGITAL  

INVESTING

CENTERS OF 
EXCELLENCE / 

RECONCILIATION
H2 2022 

TOTAL
Net interest and dividend income 0.3 77.8 0.9 −10.3 68.8
Net fee and commission income 209.9 205.9 −7.1 −15.2 393.4
Trading income and other operating income −0.7 42.0 70.9 24.6 136.7
Total operating income 209.5 325.6 64.7 −0.9 599.0
Personnel expense 1 32.4 107.7 5.9 183.7 329.7
General expense 1 11.7 19.4 5.3 88.6 124.9
Depreciation of property, equipment (incl. software)  
and intangible assets 1.5 5.5 0.1 46.0 53.0
Provisions and losses 0.3 0.9  3.2 4.4
Total operating expense 45.8 133.5 11.3 321.5 512.0
Profit before taxes 163.7 192.1 53.4 −322.3 87.0
Taxes 8.5
Group net profit 78.5
of which allocated to shareholders of Vontobel Holding AG 78.5

Additional information
Assets under Management (CHF B)2 107.2 92.6 0.5 4.0 204.4
Net new money (CHF B) −6.5 2.4 −0.0 −0.0 −4.2
Employees (full-time equivalents) 193.2 677.9 52.6 1,290.7 2,214.4

1 The figures were adjusted to reflect the new organizational structure.
2 To make the segment reporting more informative, assets under management are now disclosed instead of client assets. 

Information on regions 1

CHF M SWITZERLAND
EUROPE EXCL. 
SWITZERLAND AMERICAS

OTHER  
COUNTRIES 2 CONSOLIDATION

H2 2022  
TOTAL

Operating income related to  
external customers 381.8 126.3 33.8 57.1 599.0
Assets 22,581.4 2,925.9 89.3 9,151.1 −4,238.5 30,509.2
Property, equipment and  
intangible assets 935.6 72.9 2.5 2.5 1,013.6
Additions to property, equipment  
(incl. software) and intangible assets 3 145.9 1.0 0.0 0.1 147.0

1 Reporting is based on operating locations
2 Mainly United Arab Emirates
3 Including additions due to changes in the scope of consolidation
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The Executive Committee of Vontobel believes that the 
alternative performance indicators (non-IFRS perfor-
mance indicators) contained in this document provide 
readers of the financial statements with valuable and more 
detailed information about elements of performance that 
the managers of these businesses can influence most 
directly or that are relevant when assessing Vontobel’s 

performance. They also reflect an important aspect of the 
definition of operational targets and are monitored by 
Vontobel’s management. Nevertheless, the alternative 
performance measures in this document are no substitute 
for IFRS key figures and readers should also take account 
of IFRS key figures.

KEY FIGURES / ABBREVIATION DEFINITION / REFERENCE
Adjusted profit before taxes See table on page 18
Advised client assets See note 15
Assets under management See note 15
AT1 Additional Tier 1 bond 
Basel III leverage ratio See chapter “Capital and liquidity”
BIS Bank for International Settlements
CEE Central and Eastern Europe
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CET1 Common Equity Tier 1; see chapter “Capital and liquidity”
CFO Chief Financial Officer
Client assets See note 15
Client deposits Customer deposits

Cost / income ratio
Ratio of total operating expense (excl. provisions and losses) to total 
operating income

Cost of capital Costs used for the imputed return on equity
CRO Chief Risk Officer
Custody assets See note 15

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share based on the weighted average number of 
shares

Equity ratio Ratio of shareholders’ equity to total liabilities and equity
FINMA Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority

Gross margin
Ratio of total operating income to average assets under management 
(based on average values for individual months)

IAS International Accounting Standards
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
LATAM Latin America
Liquidity Coverage Ratio See chapter “Capital and liquidity”
Net new money / net inflows or outflows of new money See note 15
Net profit Group net profit
OTC Over-the-counter

Glossary of non-IFRS performance 
measures and abbreviations 
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KEY FIGURES / ABBREVIATION DEFINITION / REFERENCE

Payout ratio

Proportion of Group net profit attributable to the shareholders of 
Vontobel Holding AG that is distributed to shareholders in the form of 
dividend payments

Pre-tax profit Profit before taxes

Price / book value per share
Share price at the balance sheet date in relation to shareholders’ 
equity per registered share outstanding at balance sheet date

Price / earnings per share
Share price at the balance sheet date in relation to earnings per 
average registered share outstanding during the year under review

Required capital See chapter “Capital and liquidity”

Return on equity 
Annualized Group net profit as a percentage of average shareholders’ 
equity based on monthly figures, excluding minority interests

Return on tangible equity

Annualized Group net profit as a percentage of average shareholders’ 
equity based on monthly figures, excluding intangible assets and 
minority interests

Risk-weighted positions See chapter “Capital and liquidity”
SNB Swiss National Bank
Tier 1 capital See chapter “Capital and liquidity”
Tier 1 capital ratio See chapter “Capital and liquidity”

Value at Risk

Average Value at Risk 6 months; historical simulation of Value at Risk; 
99 % confidence level; 1-day holding period; 4-year historical 
observation period
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Financial calendar

October 31, 2023
9-month trading update

April 9, 2024
Annual General Meeting 2024

Additional events 
www.vontobel.com/calendar

Contacts

Investor Relations
Peter Skoog  
T +41 58 283 64 38

Jessica Brügger 
T +41 58 283 73 58 
investor.relations@vontobel.com

Media Relations
Peter Dietlmaier  
T +41 58 283 59 30

Urs Fehr  
T +41 58 283 57 90 
media.relations@vontobel.com

Corporate Responsibility
Christian Schilz 
Head Corporate Responsibility 
T +41 58 283 71 83

Simone Schärer 
Corporate Sustainability Manager 
T +41 58 283 51 72 
sustainability@vontobel.com

Vontobel Holding AG registered shares
Stock exchange 
listing SIX Swiss Exchange
ISIN CH001 233 554 0
Security number 1 233 554
Par value CHF 1.00

Ticker symbols
Bloomberg VONN SW
Reuters VONTZn.S
Telekurs VONN

Vontobel Holding AG  
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) bond
Size CHF 450 M
ISIN CH041 904 256 6
Coupon 2.625 %

Moody’s Ratings

Bank Vontobel AG
Long-term deposit rating Aa3
Short-term deposit rating Prime-1
Long-term counterparty 
risk rating A2
Short-term counterparty 
risk rating Prime-1
Long-term counterparty 
risk assessment A1 (cr)
Short-term counterparty 
risk assessment Prime-1 (cr)

Vontobel Holding AG
Long-term rating 
(issuer rating) A2
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) 
bond Baa2 (hyb)

Investors’ information  
and contacts
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Our locations

At Vontobel, we actively shape the future. We master 
what we do – and we only do what we master.

From Zurich, Frankfurt am Main and London over 
New York and Dubai to Hong Kong – throughout 
27 offices, we service our clients.

Find an overview of all our offices on vontobel.com
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Imprint
Publishing by
Vontobel Holding AG
Gotthardstrasse 43
8022 Zurich

Concept
MetaDesign AG

Layout & implementation 
Vontobel and NeidhartSchön AG

Print
Neidhart + Schön Print AG

Cover Picture
Lugano 

Credit
Keystone SDA

For eight years, Vontobel has been serving wealth management clients from its 
branch in Ticino, which it acquired through the takeover of Finter Bank. With this 
step, Vontobel consciously sent out a positive signal to the Italian-speaking 
region. “Vontobel is clearly demonstrating that it sees growth potential in the 
area of active wealth and asset management, coupled with individual investment 
solutions, in the Italian-speaking region,” was the message back at the beginning 
in October 2015. Today, around three dozen Vontobel specialists serve wealth 
management clients in Lugano, Switzerland’s third-largest financial center, and 
Locarno. These clients can also access the global investment knowhow of more 
than 300 Vontobel investment experts.  

Legal information 
This Half-Year Report is intended solely for information purposes and is expressly 
not addressed to any person who by domicile or nationality is prohibited to 
receive such information according to the applicable law. The information and 
views contained in it do not constitute a request, offer or recommendation to use 
a service, to buy or sell investment instruments or to conduct other transactions. 
By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncer-
tainties, both general and specific, and risks exist that predictions, forecasts, pro-
jections and other outcomes described or implied in forward-looking statements 
will not be achieved.  
 
This report may contain information obtained from third parties, including ratings 
from rating agencies. The reproduction and distribution of third-party content in 
any form is prohibited except with the prior written permission of the affected 
third party. Third-party content providers do not guarantee the accuracy, com-
pleteness, timeliness, or availability of any information, including ratings, and are 
not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of 
the cause, or for the results obtained from the use of such content. Third party 
content providers give no express or implied warranties, including, but not limited 
to, any warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. 
Credit ratings are statements of opinions and are not statements of fact or rec-
ommendations to purchase, hold or sell securities. They do not address the mar-
ket value of securities or the suitability of securities for investment purposes and 
should not be relied on as investment advice.



Vontobel Holding AG 
Gotthardstrasse 43 
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